ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BiIARO H !GI N Algucpmcm FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition
09- 0 4L
ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT RECEIVED

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

NOV 1 3 2009

This Section must be completed for all projects.

HEALTH FACILITIES &
Facility/Project Identification SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
Facility Name: Silver Cross Medical Services Building
Street Address: 1890 Silver Cross Boulevard
City and Zip Code: New Lenox, lllinois 60451
County: Will Health Service Area: 009 Health Planning Area: 009

Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers
Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois 60432

Name of Registered Agent: Paul Pawlak

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Paul Pawlak

CEO Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois 60432
Telephone Number: (815) 740-7000_

: APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
i APPLICATION FORM. _

i wm—— = . PR S —

Type of Ownership

X Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company OJ Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

CHI2_2176554.3




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Silver Cross Medical Services Building

Street Address: 1890 Silver Cross Boulevard

City and Zip Code: New Lenox, |llinois 60451

County: Wil Health Service Area: 008 Health Planning Area: 008

Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Silver Cross Health System

Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, Ninois 60432

Name of Registered Agent: Paul Pawlak

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Paul Pawlak

CEQ Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois 60432

Telephone Number: (815) 740-7000

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
{ APPLICATION FORM.

e r——— —-— —

Type of Ownership

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
[l For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
OJ Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Edward J. Green, Esq.

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Foley & Lardner, LLP

Address: 321 North Clark Street, Suite 2800, Chicago, lllinois 60654

Telephone Number: {312) 832-4375

E-mail Address: egreen{@foley.com

Fax Number: (312) 832-4700

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Ruth Colby

Title: Senior Vice President, Chief Strategy Officer

Company Name: Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers

Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois 60432

Telephone Number: (815) 740-7002

E-mail Address: rcolby@silvercrgss.org

Fax Number: (815) 740-7047

CHI2_2176654:3 Page 3




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance)

Name: Sara Jackson

Title: Director, Business Intelligence

Company Name: Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers
Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllincis 60432
Telephone Number: (815) 740-1234 Ext. 7544

E-mail Address: sjackson@silvercross.org

Fax Number: (815} 774-4882

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers

Address of Site Owner: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois 60432

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 1890 Silver Cross Boulevard, New Lenox, !llinois 60451

APPEND DOGUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC sEQUENTlAL-_QﬁﬁER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
LAPPLICATIONFORM. . _ . . . _ . _w - oL T
Operating Identity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page ]

Exact Legal Name: Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers. There is no license associated with this Project
Address: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois 60432

= Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company U Sole Proprietorship U Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person
who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person is participating in the development or
funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial contribution.

_ APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
: APPLICATION FORM. _ o

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of llinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a readable
format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the requirements of
Iinois Executive Order #2005-5 (http://www.idph.state.il.us/about/hfpb.htm).

»

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
. APPLICATION FORM._ _ _ R . .

CHI2_2176664:3 Page 4
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

[Refer to application instructions.)

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation

3.

. APPLICATION FORM.

— s S S -

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b})]

1 APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDéR AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

Part 1110 Classification:
O Substantive

X Non-substantive

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
[Check one only.]

[ Part 1120 Not Applicable
[0 Category A Project
Category B Project

[ DHS or DVA Project

2. Project Outline

In the chart below, indicate the proposed action{s) for each clinical service area involved by writing the number of beds,

stations or key rooms involved.

Clinical Service Areas
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Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive Care

Acute/Chronic Mental lliiness

Neonatal Intensive Care

Open Heart Surgery

Cardiac Catheterization

In-Center Hemodialysis

X 0in this
Applicat
-ion

Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Selected Organ Transplantation

Kidney Transplantation

Subacute Care Hospital Model

Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

Children’s Community-Based Health Care Center

Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center

Long Term Acute Care Hospital Bed Projects

Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Service:

. Surgery

. Ambulatory Care Services {organized as a service)

Diagnostic & Interventional Radiclogy/lmaging

Therapeutic Radiology

Lahoratory

Phamacy

. Occupational Therapy

. Physical Therapy

. Major Medical Equipment

Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Master Design and Related Projects

Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions




{LLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

R . e - . o - -

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPL!CATlON FORM. -~ B e *. AT mnm, ; ST -

L

3. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal description
of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers {the “Hospital") and Silver Cross Health System (the “System,”
collectively with the Hospital, the “Applicants”} seek authority from the lllinois Health Facilities & Services
Review Board (the “Board”) to lease approximately 83,126 rentable square feet (the “Project’) in a 198,025
rentable square foot, six floor, professional office building (the “Silver Cross Medical Services Building” or the
"MSB"} to be developed, constructed and owned by SCH MSB LLC (the "Owner” or the “Landlord”} on the
campus (the “Replacement Campus") of the replacement hospital (the “Replacement Hospital”) being built on
the corner of Route 6 and Silver Cross Boulevard in New Lenox, llinois by the Applicants. The MSB's street
address will be 1890 Silver Cross Boulevard, New Lenox, lllinois 60451.

Where helpful or relevant in this Application, the Applicants have provided information concerning the Owner.

In terms of the 83,126 rentable square feet being leased by the Hospital, the Hospital will lease space on the
lower level, first floor, and third floor of the MSB. The following clinical and non-clinical functions will be
housed on these floors: dialysis, cardiac rehabilitation, pathology, conference rooms, data center, business
offices, outpatient testing, occupational therapy, physical therapy, diabetes and wound care center,
educational center, and space for hospital employed physicians. Because dialysis is a separate licensure
category, the Applicants will, in the very near future, be filing a separate certificate of need application
addressing dialysis in more detail. In this Application, the Applicants have included the dialysis space {i.e.
8,685 rentable square feet), the rent associated with the dialysis space, the buildout costs associated with the
dialysis space, and the tenant improvement allowance associated with the dialysis space because the
Applicants have committed to lease this space whether or not the future certificate of need for the dialysis
service line is approved by the Board. The Applicants have not included any equipment costs or licensing
costs associated with the dialysis space in this Application.

The remaining 114,899 rentable square feet in the MSB will be leased by the Owner to independent
physicians and medical groups. To date, the Owner has obtained 32 commitment letters from physicians and
medical groups to lease 97,700 rentable square feet. Thus, between the Applicants and the physicians, the
Owner has already secured commitments for 180,826 rentable square feet of space in the MSB -- or more
than 91.3% of the total rentable square feet in the MSB.

There are no licenses associated with this Project.
Pursuant to Section 1110.40(b} of the lllinois Administrative Code, the Project is considered “Non-Substantive”

because it involves the construction of a medical office building and other non-inpatient space. The Project is
subject to review under Section 1110 and Section 1120 of the lllinocis Administrative Code.

CHIZ_2176664-3 Page 6 -




{LLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair
market or dollar value {refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated project
cost. If the project contains non-clinical components that are not related to the provision of health care,
complete the second column of the table below. See 20 ILCS 3960 for definition of non-clinical. Note, the use

and sources of funds must equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NON-CLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

CHI2_21766543

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

$6,106,733.02

$3,587,928.29

$9,694,661.31

Modernization Contracts

Contingencies $294,600.00 $205,400.00 $500,000.00
Architectural/Engineering Fees $441,900.00 $308,100.00 $750,000.00
Consulting and Other Fees $29,460.00 $20,540.00 $50,000.00
Movable or Other Equipment (not in

construction contracts) (includes computers, $5,303,814.48 $796,136.00 | $6,099,950.48
furniture, fixtures, and equipment)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction

{project related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space (discounted

value of 15 year space lease) $14,355,549.34 $10,008,926.79 | $24,364,476.13

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property
(excluding land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

$26,532,056.84

$14,927,031.08

$41,459,087.92

SOURCE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NON-CLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securities

$22,651,754.01

$12,221,619.67

$34,873,373.68

Piedges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)(discounted value of
15 years of ground lease)

$1,746,185.08

$1,217.469.16

$2,963,654.24

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources (Tenant Improvement
Allowance from Owner)

$2,134,117.75

$1,487,942.25

$3,622,060.00

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

$26,532,056.84

$14,927,031.08

$41,459,087.92

Page 7
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2008 Edition

NOTE ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LA.ST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM,

Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that will be
or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

{and acquisition is related to project [l Yes No
Purchase Price:  §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

[ Yes X No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating
deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilization
specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

] None or not applicable ] preliminary
Schematics [] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): QOctober 31, 2012

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part 1130.140):

[[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.

] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent
“certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to CON
contingencies.

B Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable: Yes. All reports have been submitted.
] Cancer Registry
[ ] APORS
EI All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been submitted

[ An reports regarding cutstanding permits




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area GSF and cost. The sum of the department costs MUST
equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being realiocated for a different purpose.
Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area's portion of the surrounding circulation
space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Rentable Amount of Proposed Total Gross Rentable
Square Feet Square Feet That Is:
. New . Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space
Clinical
Express/Complex
Testing $3,858,282.67 8,707 8,707
OT/PT $4,124,039.15 8,802 8,802
g;t;etes/w ound | g1 150,000.02 2651 | 2,661
Lab $7,722,130.10 9,821 9,921
Cardiac Rehab $3,643,057.79 4,927 4,927
Circulation $2.129,445.23 5,284 5,284
Dialysis $3,005,101.87 8,685 8,685
Total Clinical $26,532,056,84 48,977 48,977
Non-Clinical
Conference
Center $3,485,692.57 7,983 7,983
IT $3,488,003.57 4,322 4,322
Marketing $560,354.28 1,421 1,421
Business Offices $471,944.51 1,164 1,164
Educational
Genter $3,656,943.51 11,500 11,500
Employed
Physician Offices $1,778,812.88 4,076 4,076
Circulation $1,484,289.77 3,683 3,683
Total Non-
Clinicat $14,927,031.08 34,149 34,149
Total $41,459,087.92 83,126 83,126

S e s - ——— . e-“ ;... o

i APPEND DOCUMENTATION A.S ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ) . ..

CHI2_2176554:3 Page 9




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of the
project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the latest
Calendar Year for which the data are available. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result
in the application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Silver Cross Hospital ** CITY: 1200 Maple Road, Joliet, lllinois
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: 1/1/2008 to: 12/31/2008
Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds
184 11,774 45,806 0 184
Medical/Surgical
26 2,057 4,976 0 26
Obstetrics
39 388 717 0 39
Pediatrics
18 1,241 4,119 0 18
Intensive Care
17 323 4,010 0 17
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation
20 838 3,939 0 20
Acute/Chranic Mental lliness
0 0 0 0 0
Necnatal Intensive Care
0 0 0 0 0
General Long Term Care
0 0 0 0 0
Specialized Long Term Care
0 0 0 0 0
Long Term Acute Care
o 0 0 0 0
Other
304 16,621 63,567 0 304
TOTALS:

** The authorized beds set forth in the above chart reflect the number of authorized beds at the
Hospital’s existing campus in Joliet, llinois. On July 1, 2008, the Hospital received a permit to
construct a replacement hospital (the “Replacement Hospital"} in New Lenox, lilinois (Project No. 07-
148). The above chart does not reflect the number of authorized beds at the Reptacement Hospital,
i.e., 289 total beds, which are allocated as follows: 194 medical/surgical beds, 30 obstetrics beds, 8
pediatrics beds, 22 intensive care beds, 15 comprehensive rehabilitation beds, and 20 acute mental
ilness beds.

CHI2_2176564-3 Page 10
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APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The authorized
representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole manger or
member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or more
general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers®

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act. The
undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for permit on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided
herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief.

herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE

Paul Pawlak
PRINTED NAME

President & CEO
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization;

Subscribed and sw%to before me
this .28 dayof _7 MMLZFA/;J/J&?

The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required for this application is sent

\Ml""’w
SIGNATURE [/

William Brownlow
PRINTED NAME

Senior VP Finance/CFQ
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:

Subscribed and swgpjo before me
this_\29__day of 7 WLMZM Hoo7

Signature of Notary 0 Signature of Notary

SR8 Seal pAmAmrAAAAARAA AT A
$ OFFICIAL SEAL $ $ OFFICIAL SEAL $
§  DEMISELTATGENHORST  $ § | DENISEL TATGENHORST 3
3 NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS  § ¢  NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS  §
§ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES.0815/10  § g MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 081510

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

CHI2_2176554-2 Pane 11
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The authorized
representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole manger or
member when two or more managers or members do not exist});

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or more
general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Silver Cross Health System*

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act. The
undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for permit on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided
herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief.

herewith or will be paid upon request.

(R Az

SIGNATURE }

Paul Pawlak
PRINTED NAME

President & CEOQ
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization;
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this I~ day ofwﬁﬂﬁ?

PR W AP A A
e B LA e g

DENISE L TATGENHORST
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF iLLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 081510

A

s o g Sl S S - PP,

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required for this application is sent

[y

SIGNATURE !

William Brownlow
PRINTED NAME

Senior VP Finance/CFQO
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn.to before me
this _ 3 day of

OFFICIAL SEAL
DENISE L TATGENHORST
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:08/15/10

PP P T S g P,

PP,

CHI2_2176564:2
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

SECTION Ill. - PROJECT PURPOSE, BACKGROUND AND ALTERNATIVES - INFORMATION
REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.
Criterion 1110.230 - Project Purpose, Background and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, certification
and accreditation identification numbers, if applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the
licensing or certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally
recognized accreditation organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an
abandonment or withdrawal of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfil the information
requirements of this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been
previously provided, cite the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have
occurred regarding the information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit
amendments to previously submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

e e e T e - em ae C

i ——
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-10, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE !
APPLICATION FORM. :

e A e — _——— = —— . —— e

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for
the project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation. ]

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the
population's health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to
achieving the stated goals.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

L —————— — . = ==
L




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2008 Edition

NOTE“The descraptlon on of the “F “Purpose of the Pro;ect” should not exgeed one page in length. i

Informatlon regardmg the “Purpose of the Prolect“ \'mll be lnciuded in the State Agency Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-H, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE Of THE
* APPLICATION FORM.

ALTERNATIVES
Document ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Examples of alternative options include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing

alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion
of the population proposed to be served by the project; and

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of cost, patient access, quality and financial benefits
in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data, that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

- o -

A S W ————— I — p——
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. . . . . S

CHI2_2176564-3




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2309 Edition

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the GSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or
operational needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and reguires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing bed space that results in excess square
footage.

g ey = e e
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13," IN NUMERIC SEQUEN _
APPLICATION FORM. - IR
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or
equipment for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 . Adm.
Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or
exceed the utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B.

o s o e T mmd ey b S et e e = LSO te P e e

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14.IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
} APPLICATION FORM. Bt ST el

- : B . TP P ' . . -

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Reguirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed to
occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are available;

CHI2_2176664-3 Paae 15
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and

b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed into
operation.

' APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
: APPLICATION FORM.

i

r.___u.._,_ i a —_=— - . e e
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ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the shell
space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject shell
space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

P — L e e e o g g e am——

- - fame - e m -

i
. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
i APPLICATION FORM.

. e e — o —— _—————— . - —— —_ - . . e vk
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R. Criterion 1110.3030 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
Categories of Service must submit the following information: See attached.

Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action{s):

# Existing # Proposed #to #to #to
Service Key Rooms Key Rooms Establish Expand Modernize
]
[
L]
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and SUBMIT all required information:
PROJECT TYPE REQUIRED REVIEW CRITERIA
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) - Need Determination -
Establishment
Service Modernization (cX1) - Deteriorated Facilities
and/or
{c)2) - Necessary Expansion
PLUS
(c)H3)A) - Utilization — Major Medical
Equipment
Or
(c)(3)}B) - Utilization — Service or Facility

. TE—— 4 A - mew T - - - - . ¥

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS INDICATED BELOW, IN NUMERIC
1 SEQUENCIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION

FORM: :
i1 - — —— - — 1_
Attachment
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Number
Need Determination - Establishment 62
Service Demand 63
Referrals from Inpatient Base 64
Physician Referrals 65
Historical Referrals to Other Providers 66
Population Incidence 67
Impact of Project on Other Area Providers 68
Utilization 69
Detericrated Facilities 70
Necessary Expansion 71
Utilization -Major Medical Equipment 72
Utilization - Service or Facility 73
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T. Financial Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY (FIN)

Does the applicant (or the entity that is responsible for financing the project or is responsible for assumin
applicant's debt obligations in case of default) have a bond rating of “A” or better?
Yes O No[.

If yes is indicated, submit proof of the bond rating of "A” or better (that is less than two years old) from
Fitch’s, Moody's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies and go to Section XXVL. If no is indicated,
submit the most recent three years’ audited financial statements including the following:

1. Balance sheet 3. Change in fund balance

2. Income statement 4. Change in financial position (See attached).

A. Criterion 1120.210(a), Financial Viability

1. Viability Ratios

If proof of an “A” or better bond rating has not been provided, read the criterion and complete
the following table providing the viability ratios for the most recent three years for which audited
financial statements are available. Category B projects must also provide the viability ratios for
the first full fiscal year after project completion or for the first full fiscal year when the project
achieves or exceeds target utilization (per Part 1100), whichever is later. See attached.

Provide Data for Projects Classified | Category A or Category B (last three years) Category B
as: (Projected)

Entar Historical and/or Projected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total
Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each. Insert the worksheets

after this page.

2. Variance

Compare the viability ratios provided to the Part 1120 Appendix A review standards. If any of
the standards for the applicant or for any co-applicant are not met, provide documentation that a
person or organization will assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should
the applicant default. The person or organization must demonstrate compliance with the ratios
in Appendix A when proof of a bond rating of "A" or better has not been provided.

0018
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REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY (FiIN})
(continued)

B. Criterion 1120.210(b), Availability of Funds

If proof of an “A” or better bond rating has not been provided, read the criterion and document that
sufficient resources are available to fund the project and related costs including operating start-up
costs and operating deficits. Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$34,873,373.68 Cash & Securities
Provide statements as to the amount of cash/securities available for the project.

Identify any security, its value and availability of such funds. Interest to be earned or
depreciation account funds to be earned on any asset from the date of application
submission through project completion are also considered cash.

Pledges
For anticipated pledges, provide a letter or report as to the dollar amount feasible
showing the discounted value and any conditions or action the applicant would have
to take to accomplish goal. The time period, historical fund raising experience and
major contributors also must be specified.

Gifts and Beguests
Provide verification of the dollar amount and identify any conditions of the source and
timing of its use.

$2,963,654.24 Debt Financing (indicate type(s) Ground L ease Rent Stream) (See attached)

For general obligation bonds, provide amount, terms and conditions, including any
anticipated discounting or shrinkage) and proof of passage of the required referendum
or evidence of governmental authority to issue such bonds;
For revenue bonds, provide amount, terms and conditions and proof of securing the
specified amount;
For mortgages, provide a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the
expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated;
For leases, provide a copy of the lease including all terms and conditions of the |lease
including any purchase options.

Governmental Appropriations
Provide a copy of the appropriation act or ordinance accompanied by a statement of
funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subseguent fiscal years, provide a resolution or other action of the
governmental unit attesting to such future funding.

Grants
Provide a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the
amount, conditions, and time or receipt.

$3,622,060.00 Other Funds and Sources (Tenant Improvement Allowance)(See attached)

Provide verification of the amount, terms and conditions, and type of any other funds
that will be used for the project.

$41,459,087.92 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE
C. Criterion 1120.210{c), Operating Start-up Costs

If proof of an “A” or better bond rating has not been provided, indicate if the project is classified as a
Category B project that involves establishing a new facility or a new category of service? Yes [C
No . if yes is indicated, read the criterion and provide in the space below the amount of operating
start-up costs (the same as reported in Section 1 of this application) and provide a description of the
items or components that comprise the costs. indicate the source and amount of the financial
resources available to fund the operating start-up costs (including any initial operating deficit} and
reference the documentation that verifies sufficient resources are available.

. memre C e — - = o - - - R Cm —

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 75, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
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- FORM.

- —— = — - = W - . R -

CHI2_2176564-3 Page 19

0019




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- July 2009 Edition

U.

Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

SECTION XXVI, REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY (ECON})

A. Criterion 1120.310(a), Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
Is the project classified as a Category B project? Yes [ No 0. If no is indicated this criterion is
not applicable. If yes is indicated, has proof of a bond rating of "A” or better been provided? Yes L
No . If yes is indicated this criterion is not applicable, go to item B. If no is indicated, read the
criterion and address the following:
grﬁ all available cash and equivalents being used for project funding prior to borrowing? [ Yes

o}

If no is checked, provide a notarized statement signed by two authorized representatives of the
applicant entity (in the case of a corporation, one must be a member of the board of directors) that
attests to the following:

1. a portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet asset
accounts in order that the current ratio does not fall below 2.0 times; or

2. borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments and the existing
mvesctjments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day
period.

B. Criterion 1120.310(b), Conditions of Debt Financing (SEE ATTACHED)
Read the criterion and provide a notarized statement signed by two authorized representatives of the
applicant entity (in the case of a corporation, one must be a member of the board of directors) that
attests to the following as applicable:

1. The selected form of debt financing the project will be at the lowest net cost available or if a
more costly form of financing is selected, that form is more advantageous due to such
terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage, access to a ditional debt, term
(years) financing costs, and other factors,

2. All or part of the project involves the leasing of equipment or facilities and the expenses
incurred with such leasing are less costly than constructing a new facility or purchasing new
equipment.

B. Criterion 1120.310{c), Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs (SEE ATTACHED)
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost and
square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the following
format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B c D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross 3q. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. | New Circ.* | Mod. Circ* | (AxC) (BxE) (G +H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

2. For each piece of major medical equipment included in the proposed project, the applicant

must certify one of the following:

CHI2_21765543
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REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY (ECON)
] (continued)

a. that the lowest net cost available has been selected; or

b. that the choice of higher cost equipment is justified due to such factors as, but not
limited to, maintenance agreements, options to purchase, or greater diagnostic or
therapeutic capabilities.

3. List the items and costs included in preplanning, site survey, site preparation, off-site work,
consulting, and other costs to be capitalized. If any project line item component includes
costs attributable to extraordinary or unusual circumstances, explain the circumstances and

| provide the associated dollar amount. When fair market value has been provided for any

component of project costs, submit documentation of the value in accordance with the

requirements of Part 1190.40.

D. Criterion 1120.310{d), Projected Operating Costs

Read the criterion and provide in the space below the facility's projected direct annual operating
costs (in current dollars per equivalent patient day or unit of service, as applicable) for the first fuli
fiscal year of operation after project completion or for the first full fiscal year when the project
achieves or exceeds target utilization pursuant to 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100, whichever is later. If the
project involves a new category of service, also provide the annual operating costs for the service.
Direct costs are the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits, and supplies. Indicate the year for
which the projected operating costs are provided. $13.17 per procedure

E. Criterion 1120.310(e), Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

Is the project classified as a category B project? Yes [ No 0. If no is indicated, go to item F. If
yes is indicated, provide in the space below the facility's total projected annual capital costs as
defined in Part 1120.130(f) (in current dollars per equivalent patient day) for the first full fisca! year of
operation after project completion or for the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds
target utilization pursuant to 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100, whichever is later. Indicate the year for which
the projected capital costs are provided. $0

F. Criterion 1120.310(f), Non-patient Related Services

Is the project classified as a category B project and involve non-patient related services? Yes 1
No 3. If no is indicated, this criterion is not applicable. If yes is indicated, read the criterion and
document that the project will be self-supporting and not result in increased charges to
patients/residents or that increased charges are justified based upon such factors as, but not limited
to, a cost benefit or other analysis that demonstrates the project will improve the applicant’s financial
viability.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT -76, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Attachment 1
Applicant Identification

The Certificates of Good Standing for Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers (the “Hospital’)
and Silver Cross Health System (the “System,” collectively with the Hospital, the “Applicants”)
are attached at ATTACHMENT-1.

CHI2_2180762.4
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File Number 5257-283-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON NOVEMBER 19, 1981, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT

CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 19TH

day of AUGUST AD. 2009

TR ,

Authenticate at: htip:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT -1




File Number 0548-203-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTERS, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 16, 1891, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT

CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 19TH

day of AUGUST A.D. 2009

Authentication #. 0823100498 M

Authenticate at: http:.//www.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY QF STATE

ATTACHMENT -1
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Attachment 2
Site Ownership

The Hospital currently owns the site parcel covered by this Project. Upon approval of this
Project by the Board, the Hospital will enter into a Ground Lease with SCH MSB LLC (the
“Owner”) for the site parcel covered by this Project. The Ground Lease has been negotiated by
the Hospital and the Owner and the material terms of the Ground Lease are attached at
ATTACHMENT-2.

The legal description of the site parcel covered by this Project is as follows:

PIN# 15-08-04-300-008-0000

THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH,
RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE
FOLLOWING THREE TRACTS OF LAND: (1) THE SOUTH 250 FEET OF THE WEST HALF
OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4 WHICH WAS CONVEYED TO JOHN
GULLICK BY DEED RECORDED JULY 31, 1830 IN BOOK 729, PAGE 613, AS DOCUMENT
443214. (2) THAT PART DEDICATED TO THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS BY
DEDICATION RECORDED APRIL 21, 1931 BOOK 776, PAGE 4 AS DOCUMENT 449749, (3}
THE EAST 560.03 FEET OF THE NORTH 466.69 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED
TRACT OF LAND: THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, LYING NORTH OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED TO JOHN GULLICK BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 31, 1930 IN BOOK 729 PAGE 613 DOCUMENT
443214 AND SOUTH OF THE PROPERTY DEDICATED TC THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE
OF ILLINOIS FOR HIGHWAY PURPQOSES BY DOCUMENT 449749, IN WILL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

CHI2_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT - 2
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Hospital

A Solucient 100 Top Hospitals® Mational Award Winner
2004, 2005, 2006

October 1. 2009

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

[llineis Health Facilitics & Serviees Review Board
523 West Jefferson Street. 2" Floor

Springfickl. [inois 62761

Re: Fair Market Value of Ground Lease for Medical Services Building

Dear Mr. Constantinog;

SCH MSB LLC s the developer and landlord (the “Landlord”) ol the Sibver Cross
Medicat Services Building (the "MSB7). which will be constructed and located at 1890 Clinmton
Gereet. New Lenox, [Hlinois 60451, 1 have reviewed the definitions of ~fair market value™ Jocated
at 77 1. Admin. Code §§ 1120.10(h)(4) and | 130140, 1 am also familiar with the various rules

and regulations concerning the cubmission of accurate materials to the lllnois Health Facilities
[y the following:

& Services Review Board (the ~Board ™). Based on the foregoing. 1 hereby certt

i On or about September 14, 2009, Silver Cross Hospital (the “Fospital™) and the
Landlerd negotiated the terms of a certain Ground Lease (the ~Ground Lease™).
2 The Ground Lease has a fifty (30) year term. with @ (ifteen {(13) year renewal

option and a subsequent ten (10) year renewal option,
3. The Ground Lease is contingent upon the Hospital receiving permission from the
Board o enter inta the Ground Leasce.
1. Undler the terms of the Ground Lease. the Hospitabwill lease the land upon which
the MSI will sit to the Owner (the “Land™).

3. The Land has the Tollowing legal description:

PINE 15-08-04-300-008-0000. THE WEST HALE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION
O TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH. RANGIE 1 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERHDIIAN,
ENCEPTING THEREFROM THE FOLLOWING THREL TRACTS OF LAND: (1) THE SOUTH 250
FEET OF THE WEST HALF QF THE SOUTHWEST OUARTER OF SECTICEN WHICH WA
CONVEYED TO JOHN GULLICK BY DEED RECORDED JULY 31,1930 IN BOOK 729, PALGE 013,
AS DOCUMENT 443214, {2) THATT PART DEDICATED TO FHE PEOPLE OF TIHE STATE OF
ILLINOIS BY DEDICATION RECORDED APRIL 21, 1931 BOOK 776, PAGE 4 AS DOCUNMENT
449740, (3) THE EAST 360.03 FEET OF THE NORTH 46669 FEET OF FHL FOLLOWING
DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND: THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHAWEST
QOUARTER OF SECTION ., TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH. RANGE 11 EAST OF THIE THIRD PRINCIPAL

1200 Maple Road = Jaoliet, iHinois. 60432 = (815) 740-1 100 » www . silvarcroee nee
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Mr. Michael Constantino
October 1. 2009
Page 2

MERIDIAN. LYING NORTH OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED TO JOHN GULLICK BY
WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 31, 1930 IN BOOK 729 PAGE 613 DOCUMENT 443214
AND SOUTH OF THE PROPERTY DEDICATED TO THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
FOR HIGHWAY PURPOSES BY DOCUMENT 449749, IN WILL COUNTY. ILLINOIS.

6. Under the terms of the Ground Lease. the Landlord will pay $289,098.98 in
annual rent to the Hospital (the “Rent”).

7. Under the terms of the Ground Lease, the Rent will increase by three percent
(3%) per vear.

8. It is my belief that an eight (8%) discount rate is normal and customary.

9. Based on the foregoing, the fair market value for the first fifieen (15) years of the

Ground Lease would be $2.963.654.24.

Sincerely,

AW N\ Coy

By: William Brownk);x(

Silver Cross Hospita edical Centers
Senior VP Finance/CFO

Subscribed and Swom Lo beforc me
this / il day of October, 2009

Notary Public

NOTARY PUBUIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
§ MY COMMISSION EXPIRES08118/10

[
4
$  DENISEL TATGENHORST
4
4
4

2

CHi2_21563787.3
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Section |
Attachment 3
Operating Entity/Licensee

There are no licenses associated with this Project.

The Certificate of Good Standing for the Hospital is attached at ATTACHMENT-3.

Organizational Relationships

The organizational charts for the Hospital and the System are attached at ATTACHMENT-3.
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File Number 0548-203-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTERS, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 16, 1891, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of lllinois, this 19TH
day of AUGUST A.D. 2009

"‘ \, -4‘. '-.J._:..;. ity
Authentication #: 923100498 M

Authenticate at: http:/fwww.cyberdriveillinois_com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT -3
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Section |

Attachment 4
Flood Plain Requirements

Attached at ATTACHMENT-4 is documentation from the lllinois Department of Natural
Resources, lllinois State Water Survey, with respect to compliance with the Flood Plain
requirements under Executive Order #5 (2006) (which superseded and replaced Executive
Order #4 (1979)).

CHIZ_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT -4
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Illinois Department of
Natural Resources Pt Quing, Governor

One Natural Resources Way  Springfield, Iilinois 62702-1271 Marc Miller, Acting Director
hitp:/fdnr.state.il.us

Special Flood Hazard Area Determination

Pursuant to Governor’s Executive Order 5 (2006)
(Supersedes Governor’s Executive Order 4 (1979))

In brief, Executive Order 5 (2006) requires that State agencies which plan, promote, regulate, or permit
activities, as well as those which administer grants or loans in the State’s floodplain areas, must ensure that
all projects meet the standards of the State floodplain regulations or the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP), whichever is more stringent. These standards require that new or substantially improved buildings
as well as other development activities be protected from damage by the 100-year flood. Critical facilities,
as described in the Exccutive Order, must be protected to the 500-year flood elevation. In addition, no
construction activities in the Moodplain may cause increases in flood heights or damages to other properties.

I

Requester: Sara Jackson , Director Business Intelligence, Silver Cross Hospital

Address: 1200 Maple Road

Cil’y, state, Zip codg: Joliet, Illincis, 60432

Project])cscription: Replacement hospital campus, Lenox, Illineis

Site address or location: Southeast corner of Route 6 and Clinton Street

Cily, state, zip code: New Lenox, Illinois

County: Will Flood Map Panel: __ 180 Map Date;__08/06/1955

Floodplain Determination
The property described above is NOT located within a 100-ycar or 500-year floodplain.
D The property described above is located within a 100-year floodplain. Further plan review required.

I | Critical facility site located within 500-ycar floodplain. Further plan review required.

Note: This determination is based on the effective Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
flood hazard map for the community. This letter does not imply that the referenced property will or will
not be free from flooding or Mlood damage. Questions concerning this determination may be directed to
the Tllinois DNR Office’of Water Resources at (217).782-3863.

et

;s
Reviewefi by: (/ il éd:, %—-—A Date 5/925;/ 5’—@) OC?

=Y
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Attachment 5
Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

Attached at ATTACHMENT-5 is documentation from the lllinois Historical Preservation Agency
regarding compliance with the requirements of the lllinois Historic Resources Preservation Act.
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Illinois Historic

=== Preservation Agency
FAX {217) 782-8161

M 1 OId State Capitol Plaza + Springfield, lllinois 62701-1512 « www.illinois-history.gov

Will County
Joliat
CON - New Construction, Freestanding Health Care Facility

1200 Maple Road
IHPA Log #00%060309

June 15, 2009

Sara Jackson

Silver Cross Hospital
1200 Maple Rd.
Joliet, IL 60432

Dear Ms. Jackson:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or
archaeological sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your filea as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
seqg.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
doas not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illincis Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A toletypewriter lor the speechihearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. it is not a voice or fax fine.
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Section |
Attachment 6
Project Classification

Pursuant to Section 1110.40(b) of the llincis Administrative Code, the Project is considered
“Non-Substantive” because it involves the construction of a medical office building and other
non-inpatient space. The Project is subject to review under Section 1110 and Section 1120 of
the lllinois Administrative Code.
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Attachment 7

Project Costs

The total cost of the Project will be $41,459,087.92. The clinical components of the Project will
cost $26,532,056.84. The non-clinical components of the Project will total $14,927.031.08.
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Section |
Attachment 8

Cost/Space Requirements

Gross Rentable
Square Feet

Amount of Proposed Total Gross
Rentable Square Feet That Is:

. New . As Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized Is Space
Clinical
Express/Complex
Testing $3,858,282.67 8,707 8,707
OT/PT $4,124,039.15 8,802 8,802
8:‘29“35"” ound | ¢4 150,000.02 2,651 2,651
Lab $7,722,130.10 9,921 9,921
Cardiac Rehab $3,643,057.79 4,927 4,927
Circulation $2,129,445.23 5,284 5,284
Dialysis $3,905,101.87 8,685 8,685
Total Clinical $26,532,056.84 48,977 48,977
Non-Clinical
Conference
Center $3,485,692.57 7,983 7,983
IT $3,488,993.57 4,322 4,322
Marketing $560,354 28 1,421 1,421
Business Offices | $471,944.51 1,164 1,164
Educational
Center $3,656,943.51 11,500 11,500
Employed
Physician Offices $1,778,812.88 4,076 4,076
Circulation $1,484,289.77 3,683 3,683
Total Non-
Clinical $14,927,031.08 34,149 34,149
Total $41,459,087.92 83,126 83,126

CHI2_2180762.4
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Section Il
Attachment 10

Background of Applicant

1. The Hospital is a fully licensed, Medicare-certified, Joint Commission accredited, lllinois
not-for-profit general hospital. A copy of the current license and Joint Commission accreditation
for the Hospital is attached at ATTACHMENT-10.

The Hospital owns and operates: (1) Silver Cross Renal Center — West, an end-stage
renal dialysis center; (2) Silver Cross Renal Center — Morris, an end-stage renal dialysis center;
and (3) Silver Cross Renal Center — Joliet, an end-stage renal dialysis center.

The Hospital is a joint venture partner in Silver Cross Hospital Cardiovascular Institute,
LLC (*SCHCI LLC"), an ambulatory surgical treatment center providing cardiac catheterizations.
A copy of the current license for SCHCI LLC is attached at ATTACHMENT-10. An application
to discontinue SCHCI LLC was filed with the Board on August 24, 2009.

2. No adverse actions have been taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
Hospital or the System in the last three years. Letters certifying that information are attached at
ATTACHMENT-10. The Applicants would note that SCHCI LLC received a statement of
deficiencies (the “SOD”) from the iliinois Department of Public Health (*IDPH"} on or about
August 3, 2009. Since receiving the SOD from IDPH, SCHCI LLC has submitted a plan of
correction (“POC”). SCHCI LLC has been advised by IDPH that the POC was accepted by
IDPH.

3. Authorization letters granting access to the Board and the lllinois Department of Public
Health (“IDPH"} to verify information about the Hospital and the System are attached at
ATTACHMENT-10.

4. An application to discontinue SCHCI LLC was filed with the Board on August 24, 2009.
That application is set to be heard in December of 2009. However, that application did not
contain the information required by this Section.
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Silver Cross Hospital
Joliet, IL
has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organization and found it to n:eet the requirements for the

Hospital Accreditation Program

March 15, 2008

Accreditation is customarily valid for up to 39 months.

Loaua&t’_ RS foboseenied . s W %/L

David L. Nahrwold, M.D. Otganization 10 # Mark Chassin, M.D.
Chairman of the Boand President

The Joint Commission is an independent, not-for-profit, national body that ov :rsees the safety and quality of health care and
other services provided in accredited organizations. Information about accr.dited organizations may be provided directly
to The joint Commission at 1-800-994-6610. Information regarding accred tation and the acereditation performance of
individual organizations can be obtained through The Joint Commnissiin’s web site at www.joinrcommission.org.
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PP¥ The Joint Commission

June 26, 2008

Paul Pawlak Joint Comnuissio 1 1D #: 7365

President and CEO Accreditation Ac:ivity: Evidence of Standards
Silver Cross Hospital Compliance

1200 Maple Road Accreditation Acrivity Completed: 6/26/2008

Joliet, 1L 60432

Dear Mr. Pawlak:

The Joint Commission would like to thank your organization for participating in the accreditation process. This
process is designed to help your organization continuously provide safe, high-qual:ty care, treatment, and services
by identifying opportunities for improvement in your processes and helping you fo'low through on and
implement these improvements. We encourage you to use the accreditation proces as a continuous standards
compliance and operationel improvement tool.

The Joint Commission is granting your organization an accreditation decisior. of Aucredited for ell services
surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below:

m ngive Accreditati
c hengive # ilation M for Hospital

This accreditation cycle is effective beginning March 15, 2008. The Joint Coinmis-ion reserves the right to
shorten or lengthen the duration of the cycle; however, the certificate and cycle are customarily valid for up to 39
months.

Please visit Quality Check® on the Joint Commission web site for updated inf srmation related to your
accreditation decision.
We encourage you to share this accreditation decision with your organization’s ap 'ropriate staff, leadership, and

governing body. You may also want to inform the Centers for Medicare and Medi.aid Services (CMS), state or
regional regulatary services, and the public you serve of your organization’s accre Jitation decision.

Pltase be assurcd that the Joint Commission will keep the report confidential, except as required by law. To
ensure that the Joint Commission’s information about your organization is always iccurate and current, our
policy requires that you inform us of any changes in the name or ownership of you r organization or the health
care services you provide.

Sincerely,

Lo St b

Linda S. Murphy-Knoll
Interim Executive Vice President
Division of Accreditation and Certification Operations
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A Solucient 100 Top Hospiic:i®

Hospital

September 21, 2009

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Dear Mr. Constantino:

Pursuant to 77 1. Admin. Code §§ 1110.230(a)(3)(A) and (B), I hereby certify that no
adverse action has been taken against any facility owned or operated by Silver Cross Health
System during the three (3) years prior to the filing of this application.

In addition, pursuant to 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.230(2)(3)(C), 1 hereby authorize the
Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board (the “Board”) and the Illinois Department of
Public Health (“IDPH™) to access all information necessary to verify any documentation or
information submitted by Silver Cross Health System with this application. I further authorize
the Board and IDPH to obtain any additional documentation or information which the Board or
IDPH finds pertinent and necessary to process this application.

Sincerely,

CoAE Bl

Paul Pawlak
President & CEO
Silver Cross Health System

Subscribed and Sworn to before me
this,73% day of September, 2009

“OFFICIAL SEAL"
CAROL J. ZIER
MOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JUNE 17, 2011 {
o e ATTACHMENT-10
0043

1200 Maple Road  Joliet, lllincis 60432 « (815) 740-1100 » www.silvercross.org




Hospital

A Solucient 100 Top Hospitc|®

September 21, 2009

Mr. Michael Constantino

Project Review Supervisor

lllinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Iilinois 62761

Dear Mr. Constantino:

Pursuant to 77 Ill. Admin. Code §§ 1110.230(a)(3)}(A) and (B), I hereby certify that no
adverse action has been taken against any facility owned or operated by Silver Cross Hospital &
Medical Centers during the three (3) years prior to the filing of this application.

In addition, pursuant to 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.230(2)(3}(C), I hereby authorize the
Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board (the “Board”) and the Illinois Department of
Public Health (“IDPH™) to access all information necessary to verify any documentation or
information submitted by Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers with this application. 1
further authorize the Board and IDPH to obtain any additional documentation or information
which the Board or IDPH finds pertinent and necessary to process this application.

Sincerely,

Paul Pawlak
President & CEO
Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Centers

Subscribed and Sworn to before me
this23% day of September, 2009

WY

“OFFICIAL SEAL"
CAROL J. ZIER

KOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF H.LINDIS 4
MY COMMISSION EXFIRES JURE 17, 2811 ¢

g - L 1 e L
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Section |l
Attachment 11
Purpose of Project

Purpose Statement

The primary purpose of the Project is to relocate certain outpatient services, administrative
offices, and physician offices from the Applicants’ Existing Hospital Campus in Joliet to the
Applicants’ Replacement Hospital Campus in New Lenox, lllinois. By co-locating these services
and functions in the MSB on the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital Campus, the Applicants will
be able to: (a) improve access for the Applicants' patients; (b) recognize certain operational
efficiencies; and {c)} meet the health care needs of the growing population in the area.

Supporting Statements & Documentation

1. The MSB will have significantly better physical access to interstates (I-355 and 1-80} and
major roadways (U.S. Routes 6 and 7).

2. The MSB will also house services that are needed to continue meeting the health care
needs of the growing population in the area. According to Nielsen Claritas data, the area is
projected to grow from an estimated total population of 801,234 in 2009 to 908,407 by 2014 - a
change of more than 100,000 people or a growth rate of 13.4% over the next five years.

3. Population in the area is aging. According to the same Nielsen Claritas data, the fastest
growing segment of the population is projected to be among those over the age of 65 (+28%
over the next five years) followed by those between the ages of 45 and 64 years of age (+18%
over the next five years). These are the same segments of the population that tend to use the
most health care services. The following chart summarizes the Nielson Claritas data.

CHI2_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT-11
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2000 2009 2014 Change
Service 2009 to
Area Age Group | Census | % Estimate | % Projection | % 2014
Primary Service Area
Ages 0-14 | 65,466 |23.8% | 79,295 22.3% | 86,858 21.7% | 9.5%
Ages 15-44 | 121,664 | 44.2% | 152,932 | 42.9% 164,906 41.2% | 7.8%
Ages 45-64 | 58,251 21.6% | 87,227 24.5% | 102,667 256% | 17.7%
Ages 65+ 28,460 10.4% | 36,655 10.3% | 45,971 11.5% | 25.4%
Subtotal 274,741 356,109 400,402 12.4%
Secondary Service Area — East
Ages 0-14 | 27,019 |21.0% | 26.474 18.3% | 28,018 18.3% | 5.8%
Ages 15-44 | 52,235 40.6% | 55,674 38.4% | 56,962 37.1% | 2.3%
Ages 45-64 | 32,765 25.5% | 43,706 30.2% | 45,660 29.7% { 4.5%
Ages 65+ 16,629 12.9% | 19,063 13.2% | 22,851 14.9% | 19.9%
Subtotal 128,648 144, 917 153,491 5.9%
Secondary Service Area —North
Ages 0-14 | 31,757 27.0% | 46,393 25.5% | 53,514 24.9% | 15.3%
Ages 15-44 | 57,065 | 48.5% | 84,450 46.5% | 93,401 43.4% | 10.6%
Ages 45-64 | 21,763 18.5% | 38,258 21.1% | 50,385 23.4% | 31.7%
Ages 65+ 7.094 6.0% | 12,625 6.9% |[17,972 8.3% | 42.4%
Subtotal 117,679 181,726 215,272 18.5%
Secondary Service Area — South
Ages 0-14 | 5335 22.0% | 6145 20.4% | 6747 20.1% | 9.8%
Ages 15-44 110724 44.2% | 13218 43.9% | 14049 41.8% | 6.3%
Ages 45-64 | 5581 23.0% | 7612 25.3% | 8852 26.3% | 16.3%
Ages 65+ 2605 10.7% | 3162 10.5% | 3955 11.8% | 25.1%
Subtotal 24245 30138 33603 11.5%
Secondary Service Area — West
Ages 0-14 13181 23.7% [ 19482 22.1% | 22818 21.6% | 17.1%
Ages 15-44 | 24788 44 5% | 38592 43.7% | 43857 41.5% | 13.6%
Ages 45-64 | 12462 22.4% | 22159 25.1% | 27744 26.3% | 25.2%
Ages 65+ 5262 9.4% | 8111 9.2% | 11220 10.6% | 38.3%
Subtotal 55694 88344 105639 19.6%
Total Service Area
Ages 0-14 142,758 | 23.8% | 177,789 | 22.2% | 197,855 21.8% | 11.3%
Ages 15-44 | 266,377 | 44.3% | 344,867 | 43.0% | 373,175 41.1% | 8.2%
Ages 45-64 | 131,822 | 21.9% | 198,962 | 24.8% | 235,308 25.9% | 18.3%
Ages 65+ 60,050 10.0% | 79,616 9.9% | 101,969 11.2% | 28.1%
Grand Total 601,007 801,234 908,407 13.4%

Source: Nielsen Claritas based on U.S. Census Bureau profections (April, 2009).

CHI2_2180762.4
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4. The primary and secondary service areas for the MSB are identical to that of the
Applicants’ Replacement Hospital.

| ZIP CODE | SERVICE AREA

60403 Primary Service Area

60421 Primary Service Area

60423 Primary Service Area

60432 Primary Service Area

60433 Primary Service Area

60434 Primary Service Area

60435 Primary Service Area

60436 Primary Service Area

60439 Primary Service Area

60441 Primary Service Area

60442 Primary Service Area

60448 Primary Service Area

60451 Primary Service Area

60467 Primary Service Area

60491 Primary Service Area

60443 Secondary Service Area — East
60449 Secondary Service Area — East
60462 Secondary Service Area — East
60464 Secondary Service Area — East
60477 Secondary Service Area — East
60440 Secondary Service Area — North
60446 Secondary Service Area — North
60490 Secondary Service Area — North
60544 Secondary Service Area — North
60586 Secondary Service Area — North
60408 Secondary Service Area — South
60416 Secondary Service Area — South
60481 Secondary Service Area — South
60404 Secondary Service Area — West
60410 Secondary Service Area — West
60431 Secondary Service Area — West
60447 Secondary Service Area — West
60450 Secondary Service Area — West

5. Currently, the patient services proposed for the MSB are located on the Applicants’

Existing Campus in Joliet. The Applicants’ Existing Campus is roughly 3.5 miles away from the
Applicants’ Replacement Campus in New Lenox. While that distance is estimated to take less
than 10 minutes, it would require physicians to expend more effort traveling between the two
campuses. The increased travel would place an additional burden on patients ~ resulting in
more time and effort to obtain needed health services. Physicians would also be
inconvenienced — resulting in delays in their delivery of health care services to patients. In
addition, the Applicants would sustain additional operating costs associated with maintaining
services on two campuses rather than having them housed on the same campus.

CHIZ_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT-11
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6. Distance and travel times between the Applicants’ Existing Campus and the Applicants’

Replacement Campus were obtained from www.mapgquest.com (07/07/09).

CHIZ_2180762.4
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Section lll
Attachment 12
Criterion 1110.230(c), Alternatives to Proposed Project

The Applicants reviewed no less than four other alternatives before electing to file this
Certificate of Need. As discussed below, the primary options reviewed with respect to this
Project included: (i) stay on the Applicants’ Existing Campus in Joliet; (ii) construct the MSB
without the assistance of the Developer; (iii) lease space in buildings other than the MSB; (iv)
expand the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital; and (v) obtain a Certificate of Need to lease
space in the MSB. The last option is the only real viable option for the Applicants. Accordingly,
it was chosen as the preferred option.

Alternative #1: Remain on Existing Campus in Joliet

Under this alternative, the Applicants would remain on the Applicants’ Existing Campus
in Joliet, lllinois. This alternative was unworkable for several reasons.

Currently, the patient services proposed for the MSB are located on the Applicants’
Existing Campus in Joliet. The Applicants’ Existing Campus is roughly 3.5 miles away from the
Applicants’ Replacement Campus in New Lenox. While that distance is estimated to take less
than 10 minutes, it would require patients and physicians to expend more time and effort
traveling between the two campuses. The presence of services on two campuses will also be
confusing to patients as they will not know which campus is offering the service(s) they need.
Physicians would also be inconvenienced — resulting in delays in their delivery of health care
services to patients. In addition, the Applicants would sustain additional operating costs
associated with maintaining services on two campuses rather than having them housed on the
same campus.

Moreover, various future uses of the Existing Hospital Campus are still under discussion.
Although the Applicants cannot say for certain, it is highly likely that the Existing Hospital is
going to be redeveloped or “re-purposed.” As a result, the services described in this Application
will have to be eventually relocated. So, even if the services described in this current
Application were to remain on the Existing Campus, a certificate of need would have to be filed
to relocate those services at a later date. Moving those services now to the Replacement
Campus makes far more sense.

On its face, this alternative may appear to be relatively inexpensive in the short term.
However, in realty, the costs of maintaining two campuses are very high. The Applicants will
have to employ managers on two campuses, offer duplicative services across two campuses,
bifurcate their operations, and maintain aging facilittes on its Existing Campus. Patient
confusion and physician inconvenience would also have to be valued. And, in the long term,
this alternative will be more expensive than any of the other alternatives.

Alternative #2: Construct MSB Without Developer

Under this alternative, the Applicants would not lease space in the MSB; rather the
Applicants would build the MSB themselves. This alternative was rejected for several reasons.
First, this was the most expensive alternative. According to the Developer, it will cost
$60,571,777 to construct the MSB. In comparison, the fair market value of the Applicants’ lease
(for the entire length of the lease) and the Applicants’ build-out expenses will total $34,059,137
for this Project — or less than 56% of the projected construction costs for the entire MSB.
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Second, this alternative would require the Applicants to use their own capital to finance the
construction of the MSB: which would, in turn, force the Applicants to redirect capital from the
construction of the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital. So, under this alternative, the Applicants
would have to finance the cost of construction for the entire MSB of $60,571,777 before the
project even begins, versus paying $2,376,709.50 in annual rent for the Applicants’ space in the
MSB. That is a significant first year savings. Third, the Applicants would have to devote their
own personnel to the development and construction of the MSB. At this time, the Applicants’
staff are focused on the construction of the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital. [n shor, the
capital and the human resources required to execute this alternative were considered too
substantial. Accordingly, the Applicants rejected this alternative.

Alternative #3: Lease Space in a Building Other than the MSB

The Applicants also considered leasing space in a building other than the MSB. This
alternative was rejected because it would force the Applicants to locate critical administrative
and out-patient services some distance from the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital. The
Applicants also concluded that an off-campus placement of the services covered by this
Certificate of Need would disrupt patient access, inconvenience physicians, and result in several
operational inefficiencies.

Just as critically, there are no buildings within ten (10) miles of the Replacement Hospital
Campus that have enough capacity currently to house the scope of services described in this
Application. Prior to the filing of this Certificate of Need, the Applicants engaged a consultant to
conduct a thorough real estate market survey. Available buildings were evaluated on the

following:

Current effective rental rate

Escalation factors in effect

Services included in the rent

Costs of services not included in the rent

The term of leases

The buildings’ gross, usable or rentable square feet

Current occupancy in the building

Tenant finish-out allowance

The mix of tenants in the building and medical services provided
Quality of construction

Based on the results of the real estate survey, which are attached at ATTACHMENT 12,
the only option available to the Applicants was to construct a new building on the Replacement
Hospital Campus. Accordingly, this alternative was rejected.

Alternative #4: Expand Replacement Hospital

The Applicants also considered an expansion to their Replacement Hospital. Like
Alternative 2, this alternative was very expensive and would have forced the Applicant to
redirect capital. As the Board is aware, the Applicants expect to spend nearly $550 per square
foot to plan, design and build their Replacement Hospital — which has to be built up to hospital
standards (vs. medical office building standards). In comparison, the Applicants will only have
to spend $131 per square foot to plan, design and build-out the space identified in this
Certificate of Need.

ATTACHMENT-12




Of course, there would be additional costs beyond these planning, design and
construction costs. The Replacement Hospital is well under way. If the Applicants elected to
expand the Replacement Hospital to include the MSB space, the Applicants would arguably
invalidate their Replacement Hospital certificate of need because the Applicants can only seek
an alteration in the amount of $19,891,962 (or 5% of the Replacement Hospital approved permit
amount of $397,839,241). The Applicants would also have to modify the construction schedule
for the Replacement Hospital — leading to significant and costly time delays.

Finally, the MSB was designed to consolidate outpatient services into a facility separate
from the inpatient services that are located in the Replacement Hospital. If the MSB services
are added to the Replacement Hospital, outpatients would have to mix with the inpatient
population and would have to navigate a much larger hospital complex. Thus, outpatients
would not enjoy the many “outpatient design features” of the MSB, i.e., separate entrances,
consolidated and co-located ambulatory services, convenient physician access, and adjacent
parking. For these reasons, the Applicants rejected this alternative.

Alternative #5: Lease Space in the MSB (Best Option)

In the final analysis, and in light of the significant issues expressed in the other
alternatives, the Applicants elected to file a Certificate of Need to lease space in the MSB. ltis
the least expensive alternative and it allows the Applicants to locate critical administrative and
critical out-patient services on the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital campus. Under this
alternative, patients and physicians will enjoy maximum convenience, health care delivery costs
will be minimized, and the Applicants can conserve operational resources. This alternative also
allows the Applicants to continue to direct its capital to the Replacement Hospital and allows
staff to maintain focus on the construction of the Replacement Hospital.
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Alternative

Pros/Cons

Estimated Cost

Alternative 1: Stay on
Existing Campus

High cost of operating two separate
campuses. Increased travel times for
physicians and confusing to patients. Does
not eliminate need to file a separate certificate
of need.

More expensive
than other
alternatives in the
long term.

Alternative 2: Construct
MSB without Developer

Very expensive. Redirects capital. Forces
Applicants to redirect in-house personnel
away from Replacement Hospital.

$60,571,577 (just
construction related
costs) needed
before the project
can even begin. As
compared to just
$2,376,709.50 in
annual rent under
Alternative 5.

Alternative 3: Lease
Space in Building Other
than MSB

Forces Applicants to locate critical
administrative and out-patient services far
from the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital.
No available buildings or space available
within 10 miles of Replacement Hospital
Campus.

Presumably the
same as Alternative
No. 5

Alternative 4: Expand
Replacement Hospital

Very expensive. Causes significant and timely
delays on Replacement Hospital project. May
invalidate certificate of need for Replacement
Hospital.

Four times as
expensive as
Alternative No. 5 on
a cost per square
foot basis ($550 vs
$131 per square
foot).

Alternative 5: Lease

Space in MSB

Allows Applicants to locate critical
administrative and out-patient services on
Replacement Hospital Campus. Maximum
convenience to physicians and patients.
Allows patients to experience “outpatient-
centric design” of MSB. Allows Applicants to
conserve capital. Allows Applicants’ staff to
focus on the construction of Applicants’
Replacement Hospital.

$34,059,137.44 (just
fair market value of
Space Lease and
build out costs)

CHI2_2180762.4
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Medical Office Buildings
Southwest Chicago Suburbs
Oct-09 (Nexcore)

ON-CAMPUS (or immediately adjacent to campus) i~

I T SR

Building Name
Address

Year Built

Total SF

Medical Services Bldg (MSB)
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL
1890 Silver Cross Blvd.

New Lenox, 1L 60451

2011

59,000

Medical Office Bldg |
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL
1870 Silver Cross Blvd.

New Lenox, IL 60451

2009

59,000

Adventist Bolingbrook MOB

ADVENTIST BOLINGBROOK HOSPITAL
369 Remington Blvd.

Bolingbrook, IL

2008

70,000

Remington Medical Commons
ADVENTIST BOLINGBROOK HOSPITAL
329 Remington Blvd. (1/4 mi)

Belingbrook, IL

2008

37,240

Edward Plainfield MOB I

EDWARD PLAINFIELD HOSPITAL
24600 W. 127" Street, Bldg B
Plainficld, IL 60585

2005

56,531

Edward Plainfield MOB 11

EDWARD PLAINFIELD HOSPITAL
23959 West Renwick Road

Plainficld, 1L 60586

2001

22,000

Christ POB

ADVOCATE CHRIST MEDICAL CENTER
4400 W. 95" Street

Oak Lawn, IL 60453

2007

57,531

OFF-CAMPUS

Lockport Crossings Mcdical Center
ADVOCATE HEALTH SYSTEMS
1298 Thomton/159" St. (@ 1-355)
Lockport, IL

2008

54,000

Greenbriar MOB

ADVOCATE HEALTH SYSTEMS
6840 Main Street

Downers Grove, IL

2008

35,000

ADVOCATE HEALTH SYSTEMS
Professional Bldg {(The Lemont MOB)
15900 W. 127" Street

Lemont, IL 60439

2001

38,882

100 Batson Court
New Lenox, IL 60451

2008

27,000

0054
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PROPOSED DEVELOPMENTS

Advocate SW Medical Bldg 11
ADVOCATE HEALTH SYSTEMS
183™ LaGrange Road

Tinley Park, IL 60487

2010

66,000

Spring Creek Medical Campus
Route 6 (North of SCH Campus)
New Lenox, IL

Fture

60,000

MedPavillion at Village Station

NE Comer of Cedar Rd./Laraway Rd.

New Lenox, IL

2010

50,00

0055
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Section IV
Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space
Criterion 1110.234(a), Size of Project

The Applicants will be leasing 83,126 rentable square feet of space in the MSB. The below
sections address those parts of the clinical space that are governed by sizing standards under
the State Norms. As set forth below, this Project satisfies the sizing standards under the State

Nerms.

Express/Complex Testing Center

The Applicants are proposing to have the following pieces of diagnostic equipment (subject to
State Norm sizing standards) in the ExpressfComplex Testing Center in the MSB: 1 flat film x-
ray machine, 2 ultrasound machines, and 1 eCam. The Express/Complex Testing Center will
encompass 8,707 rentable square feet in total.

Department/Area Rooms Proposed Proposed | State Standard | Meets State
GSF Standard?
Express/Complex
Testing Center
1 Flat X-Ray Room 283 1,386 GSF per | Yes. Sized
X-ray Below State
Norm.
2 Ultrasound Rooms 240 1,386 GSF per | Yes. Sized
ultrasound Below State
Norm.
1 eCam (Nuc Med) Room | 393 1,135 GSF per | Yes. Sized
eCam (Nuc Below State
Med) Norm.
1 OB Testing Room 458 No Standard N/A
2 Stress Test Rooms 364 No Standard N/A
1 Holter Monitor Exam 103 No Standard N/A
Room
1 Holter Scan Room 103 No Standard N/A
2 Echo Rooms 364 No Standard N/A
Support Space {(i.e., 6,399 No Standard N/A
Reading Room, Toilets,
Work Rooms, Staff
Lounge, Staff Lockers,
Clean Rocom, Nurses
Station, Sub-Waiting
Area, Consult Rooms)
Total 8,707 Yes. Sized
Below State
Norm

CHI2_2180762.4
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Therapy Center

The Applicants are proposing to provide physical, occupational and speech therapy services in
their Therapy Center. The Therapy Center will occupy 8,802 rentable square feet of space in
the MSB. It is also important to note that the Applicants have designed separate spaces for
their pediatric patients (i.e., four private pediatric exam and treatment rooms, a pediatric gym,
and a pediatric sub-waiting area occupying 880 rentable square feet) that will allow the
Applicants to segregate their younger patients from their older patients. The Applicants have
also designed separate spaces (approximately 300 rentable square feet) for their female
patients.

CHI2_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT-13
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Department/Area Rooms Proposed Proposed | State Standard Meets State
GSF Standard?
Therapy Center
Physical Therapy & 3,628 23 GSF per# of | Yes. Sized
Occupational Therapy RSF Med/Surg, Peds | Below State
(Clinical Portions){e.g., Adult & Rehab Beds Norm.
Gym, Adult Treatment for PT; and 4.3
Rooms, Aduit Exam Rooms, GSF per # of
Pediatric Gym, Pediatric Med/Surg, Peds,
Treatment Rooms, Pediatric Rehab and AMI
Exam Rooms, Woman's Beds for OT
Exam Rooms, Isolation
Room, Lab, Work Stations) Existing Hospital
Bed Count would
equate to 6,638
GSF for PT and
oT
Replacement
Hospital Bed
Count would
equate to 6,010.1
GSF for PT and
oT
Physical Therapy & 5124 N/A
Occupational Therapy (Non- | RSF
Clinical Portions){e.g.,
Records Storage,
Reception, Staff Conference
Room, Staff Toilets, Staff
Lockers, Patient Toilets,
Corridors, Supply Rooms,
Manager's Office, Water
Treatment)
Speech Therapy Room 150 RSF | 1.3 GSF per Bed | Yes. Sized
for ST Below State
Norm.
Existing Hospital
Bed Count would
equate to 547.2
GSF for ST
Replacement
Hospital Bed
Count would
equate to 520.2
GSF for ST
Total 8,802 Yes. Sized
RSF Below State
Norm.

CHI2_2180762.4
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Laboratory

The MSB will also house the laboratory for the Replacement Hospital.

The laboratory will

employ 65.80 full time equivalents and will encompass 9,921 rentable square feet. The size of
the laboratory is well below the State Norms. (Currently, 61.30 FTEs work in the main laboratory
at the Applicants’ Existing Hospital. Last year, 60.30 FTEs worked in the main laboratory at the
Applicants’ Existing Hospital.)

Department/Area Rooms Proposed Proposed | State Standard | Meets State
GSF Standard?
Laboratory N/A 9,921 225 GSF per Yes. Sized
FTE = Below State
225*65.80 = Norm,
14,805 GSF

CHI2_2180762.4
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Criterion 1110.234(b), Project Services Utilization

The Applicants’ strong historical demand for the services covered by this Application supports
the establishment of the programs and equipment proposed in this Application. In other words,
the Applicants’ historical usage and projected usage exceed the utilization standards under the
State Norms.

Express/Complex Testing Center

One General Radiological Room

The Applicants have always enjoyed a strong demand for radiological services and have
always exceeded the State Norms. In its Replacement Hospital Application, the Applicants
projected that 76,227 diagnostic procedures would be performed at the Replacement Hospital in
2014. (See Replacement Hospital Application at p. 845.) Those projections were based upon a
study generated by the Hammes Company (the “Hammes Study"), a leading healthcare
planning and strategy firm. The Applicants are confident that the Hammes Study is still valid
and accurate. Based upon the State Norm of 6,500 diagnostic procedures per room, the
Applicants can justify 11.73 radiological rooms (or rounded up to 12) at the Replacement
Hospital (or on the Replacement Hospital Campus). In fact, the Replacement Hospital will only
have 7 radiological rooms and 1 mobile unit, for a total of 8 “rooms.” Thus, the Applicants are
projected to have more than enough demand (specifically, 24,227 extra scans) to justify the 1
radiological room in the Express/Complex Testing Center. The below charl summarizes the
historical usage at the Applicants’ Existing Hospital, the general radiological projections for the
Replacement Hospital, and the general radiological projections for the MSB.

General Radiclogy Equipment
Year Year Ended Year Ended 2014 (Projected} | 2014
June 2008 June 2009 Replacement Projections
Hospital for MSB
Number of | 8 8 7 Rooms 1 Room
Radiological 1 Mobile
Rooms
Number of Scans | 34,954 34,258
(Outpatient)
Number of Scans | 7,452 7.117
(Inpatient)
Number of Scans | 42,406 41,375 76,227 6,900
(Total)
Section 1110 | 6,500 6,500 6,500 6,500
Norm Scans/Room Scans/Room Scans/Room
Rooms Justified 6.52 6.37 11.73 1.06
Capacity Meets State Norm | Meets State Norm | Meets State Norm | Meets  State
Norm

Two Ultrasound Rooms

The Applicants have also experienced strong demand for ultrasound services and have always
exceeded the State Norms. In its Replacement Hospital Application, the Applicants projected
that 28,025 ultrasound procedures would be performed at the Replacement Hospital in 2014.

CHI2_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT-14
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(See Replacement Hospital Application at p. 847 and based on the Hammes Study.} Based
upon the State Norm of 2,000 ultrasound scans per room, the Applicants can justify 14.01
ultrasound rooms (or 15 rounded up) at the Replacement Hospital (or on the Replacement
Hospital Campus). In fact, the Replacement Hospital will only have 7 ultrasound rooms and 3
mobile units, for a total of 10 “rooms.” Thus, the Applicants are projected to have more than
enough demand (specifically, 8,025 extra scans) to justify the 2 ultrasound rooms in the
Express/Complex Testing Center. Indeed, it is important to note that the Applicants only
requested 10 ultrasound rooms in their Replacement Hospital Application so 2 ultrasound
machines could be placed in the MSB. The below chart summarizes the historical usage at the
Applicants’ Existing Hospital, the ultrasound projections for the Replacement Hospital, and the
ultrasound projections at the MSB.

Ultrasound Equipment
Year Year Ended Year Ended 2014 (Projected) | 2014
June 2008 June 2009 Replacement Projections
Hospital for MSB
Number of | 6 6 7 Rooms 2 Rooms
Ultrasound 3 Mobile
Rooms
Number of Scans | 5,107 5,043
(Qutpatient)
Number of Scans | 17,954 19,315
{Inpatient)
Number of Scans | 23,067 24,364 28,025 6,435
(Total)
Section 1110 | 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Norm Scans/Room Scans/Room Scans/Room Scans/Room
Rooms Justified 11.53 12.18 14.01 3.22
Capacity Meets State Norm | Meets State Norm | Meets State Norm | Meets State
Norm

CHI2_2180762.4
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One eCam Room (Nuclear Medicine)}

The Applicants have also had strong demand for nuclear medicine services and have always
exceeded the State Norms. In its Replacement Hospital Application, the Applicants projected
that 7,959 imaging visits at the Replacement Hospital in 2014. (See Replacement Hospital
Application at p. 850 and based on the Hammes Study.} Utilizing the State Norm of 2,000 visits
per piece of equipment, the Applicants can justify 3.98 imaging machines (or 4 rounded up) at
the Replacement Hospital (or on the Replacement Hospital Campus). In fact, the Replacement
Hospitat will only have 3 imaging machines. Thus, the Applicants are projected to have enough
demand (specifically, 1,959 extra visits) to justify the 1 imaging machine in the
Express/Complex Testing Center. Indeed, it is important to note that the Applicants only
requested 3 pieces of imaging equipment in their Replacement Hospital Application so 1 piece
of imaging equipment can be justified in the MSB. The below chart summarizes the historical
usage at the Applicants’ Existing Hospital, the nuclear medicine projections for the Replacement
Hospital, and the nuclear medicine projections at the MSB.

Nuclear Medicine Equipment

Year Year Ended Year Ended 2014 (Projected) | 2014

June 2008 June 2009 Replacement Projections for

Hospital MSB
Number of 5 5 3 1
Nuclear Medicine
Machines
Number of Visits | 2,114 1,997
{Outpatient)
Number of Visits | 6,086 6,889
(Inpatient)
Number of Visits | 8,205 8,891 7,959 1,500
(Total)
Section 1110 2,000 Visits 2,000 Visits/Room | 2,000 Visits/Room | 2,000
Norm /Room Visits/Room
Machines 4.10 12.18 3.98 0.75=1.0
Justified {with
rounding)

Capacity Meets State Meets State Norm | Meets State Norm | Meets State

Norm Norm

CHIZ_2180762.4 ATTACHMENT-14
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Therapy Center

The Applicants have exceeded the State Norms for therapy services for the past several years.
Due to the growth in the service area population, the Applicants expect therapy services to grow
even further in the future. The below chart summarizes the historical usage at the Applicants’
Existing Hospital and the therapy projections at the MSB. It should be noted that the Applicants
have traditionally provided physical therapy and occupational therapy services in the same
space. That approach will continue at the MSB.

In terms of support for the Therapy Center projections set forth in this Application, the
Applicants relied upon a study {the “RIC Study”) conducted by the Rehabilitation Institute of
Chicago (the “RIC"), a national leader in terms of rehabilitation therapies. The RIC Study was
completed in January of 2009. The RIC Study: (a) analyzed the Applicants’ historical volumes;
(b) modeled volumes based on RIC's experiences in similar suburban markets; (c} considered
service area population growth; and (d) projected volumes for the Therapy Center. The
Applicants have incorporated the findings and recommendations from the RIC Study into this
Project. Critically, the Applicants and RIC have also agreed (in principal) to move forward with a
collaborative therapy effort at the MSB, which should enhance the visibility and strength of the
Applicants’ therapy programs and services.

Physical & Qccupational Therapy Utilization

Year Year Ended Year Ended 2014 Projections for
June 2008 June 2009 MSB

Number of PT 30,693 31,145 47,791

Treatments

Number of OT 10,735 11,559 12,003

Treatments

Total Number of PT 41,428 42,704 59,794

and OT Treatments

Section 1110 Norm

7.5 Treatments Per
GSF

7.5 Treatments Per
GSF

7.5 Treatments Per
GSF

GSF Allowed Under 5523.73 5,693.87 7,972.53

State Norm

Current/Proposed 3,871 (Current; 3,871 (Current; 4,380 (Proposed;

GSF for PT & OT Clinical) Clinical) Clinical}

{Clinical)

Capacity Satisfies State Norm | Satisfies State Norm | Satisfies State Norm

Speech Therapy Utilization

Year Year Ended Year Ended 2014 Projections for
June 2008 June 2009 MSB

Number of ST 2,310 2,721 3,066

Treatments

Section 1110 Norm No Utilization No Utilization No Utilization
Standard for ST Standard for ST Standard for ST

Current/Proposed 150 (Current; Clinical) | 150 (Current; Clinical) | 150 (Proposed,

GSF for ST (Clinical) Clinical}

Capacity No Utilization No Utilization No Utilization
Standard for ST Standard for ST Standard for ST

CHIZ2_2180762.4
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Laboratory

Like the other components of this Project, the proposed Laboratory is projected to easily satisfy
the sizing and utilization standards set forth in the State Norms.

Laboratory Utilization

Year Year Ended Year Ended 2014 Projections for
June 2008 June 2009 MSB

Number of Lab 1,428,762 1,463,344 1,581,796

Procedures/Tests

Full Time Equivalents | 60.3 61.3 65.8

Section 1110 Norm 225 GSF Per FTE 225 GSF Per FTE 225 GSF Per FTE

GSF Allowed Under 13,567.50 13,792.50 14,805

State Norm

Current/Proposed 9,750 {Current) 9,750 (Current) 9,921 (Proposed)

GSF for Lab

Capacity Satisfies State Norm | Satisfies State Norm | Satisfies State Norm

CHI2_2180762.4
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Attachment 15
Criterion 1110.234(c), Shelled Space

This Criterion is not applicable.
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Section VHI
Attachment 71
| Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Service

Criterion 1110.3030(c)(2), Service Modernization: Necessary Expansion

As originally contemplated by the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital CON Application, the
Applicants are proposing {in this Project) to move certain clinical and non-clinical functions and
services from the Applicants’ Existing Hospital Campus to the MSB on the Applicants’
Replacement Hospital Campus.

Because the components of this Project were discussed in the Applicants’ Replacement
Hospital CON, and because this Project is necessary to satisfy patient demand, the Applicants
hereby submit that certain components of this Project (specifically, the express/complex testing
center, the therapy center, and the laboratory functions and services) are reviewable under the
Service Modernization/Necessary Expansion criterion set forth in Section 1110.3030(c)(2).

As set forth in the preceding Section IV of this Application, the Applicants’ historical utilization
(for the past two years) can easily satisfy the State Norms for the functions and services being
proposed in this Project.

The Applicants specifically incorporate by reference the data set forth in Section IV under
Criterion 1110.234(a)(Size of Project) and Criterion 1110.234(b)(Project Services Utilization) in
support of this Criterion.
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Section IX
Financial Feasibility
Criterion 1120.210(a), Financial Viability

1. Viability Ratios. On May 19, 2009, Fitch assigned a “BBB+" rating to approximately
$250 million of lllinois Finance Authority revenue bonds issued by the Applicants to finance the
construction of the Applicants' Replacement Hospital. Fitch also assigned a “Stable” ratings
outlook. Prior to the issuance of the Replacement Hospital bonds in May of 2009, the
Applicants had an “A” bond rating. According to Fitch, the rationale for the BBB+ rating reflects
the anticipated weakening of the Applicants’ financial position during the construction of the
Replacement Hospital. Critically, Fitch ultimately concluded that the Applicants’ “historical
profitability has been solid over the past four years” and that a “return to historical levels is
expected once operations stabilize upon opening the new facility” in 2012. The below viability
ratios are consistent with Fitch’s outlook for the Applicants and support the Applicants’ decision
to engage a developer to construct the MSB. Worksheets and supporting documentation are
attached at ATTACHMENT 75.

Silver Cross Hospital Viability Ratios (FY 2006 - FY 2015}

Actual Results (9/30 fiscal year) Projected Results {9/30 fiscal year)
FY 2006 FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
Current Ratio 1.09 1.06 1.56 1.13 1.23 1.19
Net Margin 5.7% 13.9% (0.4)% (1.0)% 2.3% 4.1%
Percentage
Percent Debt to | 45.0% 40.9% 41.6% 62.9% 61.6% 59.5%
Total
Capitalization
Projected Debt | 3.59 4.79 2.15 1.68 2.14 2.45
Service
Coverage
Days Cash on 196 198 198 112 128 151
Hand
Cushion Ratioc | 12.94 10.75 11.64 3.70 4.44 5.61

CHI2_2180762.4

In terms of the current fiscal year, as of July 31, 2009, the Applicants continue to show strong
performance. In fact, operating margin was at $9.2 million versus a budget of $4.5 million. In
effect. actual results have exceeded budget by more than 100% — even during a year of
economic downturn. Careful expense management combined with ongoing revenue growth
contributed to these very favorable results. It is also significant to note that expense
management was not due to layoffs — the Applicants made a no-layoff pledge to its employees
which continues through December 31, 2009.
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2. Variances. The Applicants anticipate that this Project will be completed on or about
October 31, 2012 {or fiscal year 2013). As the below chart indicates, and consistent with Fitch’s
outlook for the Applicants, the Applicants’ financial position should begin to return to historical
levels as soon as the Replacement Hospital is complete.

Financial Feasibility Variance Analysis {Actual Results)

FY State | FY 2006 | FY State | FY 2007 | FY State | FY 2008
2006 Norm | vs. Norm | 2007 Norm | vs. Norm | 2008 Norm | vs. Norm
Current Ratio | 1.09 1.5 Fails 1.06 1.5 Fails 1.56 1.5 Satisfies
Net Margin 57% |3.5% | Satisfies | 13.9% | 3.5% | Satisfies | (0.4)% | 3.5% | Fails
Percentage
Percent Debt | 45.0% | 60% | Satisfies | 40.9% | 60% | Satisfies | 41.6% | 60% | Satisfies
to Total
Capitalization
Projected 3.59 1.75 | Satisfies | 4.79 1.75 | Satisfies | 2.15 1.75 | Satisfies
Debt Service
Coverage
Days Cashon | 196 a0 Satisfies | 198 a0 Satisfies | 198 a0 Satisfies
Hand
Cushion Ratio | 12.84 |5 Satisfies | 10.75 |5 Satisfies | 11.64 |5 Satisfies
Financial Feasibility Variance Analysis (Projected Results)
FY State { FY 2013 | FY State | FY 2014 | FY State | FY 2015
2013 Norm | vs. Norm | 2014 Norm | vs. Norm | 2015 Norm | vs. Norm
Current Ratio | 1.13 1.5 Fails 1.23 1.5 Fails 1.18 1.5 Fails
Net Margin (1.0)% | 3.5% | Fails 23% |3.5% | Fails 41% |3.5% | Satisfies
Percentage
Percent Debt | 62.9% | 60% | Fails 61.6% [ 60% | Fails 59.5% | 60% | Satisfies
to Total
Capitalization
Projected 1.68 1.75 | Faiis 2.14 1.75 | Satisfies | 2.45 1.75 | Satisfies
Debt Service
Coverage
Days Cashon | 112 90 Satisfies | 128 a0 Satisfies | 151 90 Satisfies
Hand
Cushion Ratio | 3.70 5 Fails 4.44 5 Fails 5.61 5 Satisfies

As is readily apparent in the above charts, the Applicants’ financial ratios will dip as the

CHI2_2180762.4

Replacement Hospital nears completion and then return to a strong position once the
Replacement Hospital is open. Indeed, all of the negative ratio variances on this Project are a
direct result of the financing of the Replacement Hospital and the resultant timing issues
associated with the Replacement Hospital project (i.e., capital being spent in the short term as
the Replacement Hospital is built and those same doliars being returned in the long term as the
Replacement Hospital starts generating revenues). However, as stated by Fitch, once the
Replacement Hospital is complete and open, the Applicants’ financial ratios will return to
normal. And critically, the Applicants “days cash on hand,” perhaps the most important
measure of liquidity, never falls below the state norm. Indeed, even at its lowest point, the
Applicants “days cash on hand” exceeds the state norm by more than 22 days.
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That said, and as set forth in Section lll, Alternatives, the Applicants chose the Developer to
build the MSB to conserve capital and cash. Accordingly, the Developer is the party charged
with the task of raising capital for the construction of the MSB and the Applicants’ capital
position will be protected. In effect, the Applicants shifted the financial risk for the MSB - which
will be on the Replacement Campus — to the Developer. [t also bears noting that the Applicants
have traditionally enjoyed an “A” bond rating and that the Applicants’ management team has
displayed a high skill level in all matters of finance.

Moreover, the Applicants’ Replacement Hospital CON Application specifically contemplated that
the services and space covered by this CON Application would be eventually housed on the
Replacement Hospital campus. Thus, the Applicants have expressly budgeted for this Project
and Fitch, in issuing the Applicants’ current bond rating of BBB+, discusses this Project (and its
resultant financial impact). Because Fitch has already accounted for this Project, the
Applicants’ bond rating and the Applicants’ financial viability should not suffer as a result of this
Project.

Criterion 1120.210(b}, Availability of Funds

The Applicants intend to use cash on hand to satisfy their lease payment obligations under the
Space Lease and to fund the Project. And as set forth in the above charts (and the attached
documentation), the Applicants will have sufficient cash on hand to make said lease payments
and to fund the Project. In addition, the Applicants have attached at ATTACHMENT 75 the
Affidavit of William Brownlow in support of this Criterion.

The Applicants will also be receiving $3,622,060.00 in tenant improvement allowances and
$2,963,654.24 (discounted to present value) in ground lease payments during the term of the
Space Lease from the Developer. Copies of Affidavits setting forth the amount of the tenant
improvement allowances and the ground lease payments are attached at ATTACHMENT 75.

Criterion 1120.210(c), Operating Start-Up Costs

This criterion is not applicable because this Category B project does not involve the
establishment of a new facility or a new category of service.
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)

0070

ATTACHMENT-75



o
e

"=

KPMG LLP
303 East Wacker Driva
Chicago, IL 60601-5212

independent Auditors® Report

The Boards of Directors
Silver Cross Health System
and Affiliates:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Silver Cross Health System and
affiliates as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial staternents are
the responsibility of Silver Cross Health System and affiliates’ management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Silver Cross Health
System and affiliates’ internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Silver Cross Health System and affiliatcs as of
September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations, changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The consolidating information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis of the 2008 consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial
position, results of operations, and changes in net assets of the individual organizations. The 2008
consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2008
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the 2008 consolidated financial statements tzken as a whole.

KPMe P

January 27, 2009
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Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Accrued expenses
Estimated payables under third-party reimbursement programs

Total current liabilities

Estimated self-insured professional and general liability claims

Long-term debt, excluding current installments and unamortized
bond discounts and premiums

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Commitments and contingent liabilitics

Total liabilities and net assets
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2008 2007
3,405 2,760
15,163 19,810
12,115 9,775
3,740 2,430
14,883 12,314
49 306 47,089
23,672 19,672
132,901 130,322
1,316 832
207,195 197,915
192,922 193,168
2,364 2,804
5,375 6,071
200,661 202,043
407,856 399,958
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SILYER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Revenue:
Net patient service revenue
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenses:
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits
General and administrative
Supplies
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Interest

Total expenses
Income from operations

Nonoperating gains (losses):
Investment income (loss), net
Unrestricted contributions and other, net
Gain on sale of land held for sale
Loss on early extinguishment of long-term debt

Total nonoperating gains (losses), net

Revenue and gains in excess (deficient)
of expenses and losses

Other changes in unrestricted net assets:

Change in net unrealized gains and losses on
other-than-trading securities

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Designation of investrnents as trading

Net assets released from restriction for land, building, and
equipment acquisitions financed by temporarily
restricted net assets

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2008 2007
$ 225,345 211,247
27,266 24,888
252,611 236,135
82,919 75,306
24,571 21,238
66,130 61,416
37,498 34,125
13,749 17,732
15,050 13,758
9,266 5,442
249,183 229,017
3,428 7,118
(7,804) 24,451
452 1,332
6,019 —
(3,077) —
(4,410) 25,783
(982) 32,901
— (174)
(519) 694
— (10,128)
1,255 1,787
$ (246) 25,080
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions for specific purposes
Net realized and unrealized gains and iosses on temporarily
restricted investments
Net assets released from restriction for operating purposes
Net assets released from restriction for land, building, and
equipment acquisitions

Decrease in temporarily restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets:
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on permanently
restricted investments

Change in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2008 2007
(246) 25,080
1,082 369
(182) 151

(85) (71)
(1,255) (1,787)
(440) (1,338)
(696) 399
(1,382) - 24,141
202,043 177,902
200,661 202,043
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net agsets 3 (1,382) 24,141
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 15,210 13,965
Provision for bad debts 13,749 17,732
Loss on early extinguishment of long-term debt 3,077 —_—
Equity loss (gain) in joint ventures, net of cash
distributions received 69 (22)
Effective portion of change in fair value of derivative instruments 519 (694)
Gain on disposal of land, buildings, and equipment, net — (1,100)
Gain on sale of land held for sale {6,019) —
Net realized and unrcalized gains and losses on
permanently and temporarily restricted investments 878 (550)
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on
unrestricted investments 16,465 (10,072)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable (20,097) (16,512}
Other assets (1,606) (4,925}
Estimated payables under third-party reimbursement programs 2,569 (1,313)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities 2,968 9,131
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,400 29,781
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment (18,373) {28,696)
Acquisition and devclopment of land held for sale — (1,722)
Proceeds on sale of land, buildings, and equipment — 2,715
Proceeds on sale of land held for sale 10,578 —
Net change in assets whose use is limited or restricted (1,308) 2,167
Net change in short-term investments 955 912
Net cash uscd in investing activities (8,148} (24,624)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 106,514 —
Repayments of long-term debt (103,313} (2,661)
Payments for deferred financing costs {1,070} —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,131 (2,661)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 20,383 2,496
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15,512 13,016
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 35,895 15,512

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, exclusive of income or loss on interest
rate swap agreements and net of amounts capitalized b 5,989 5,358

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Organization and Purposes

Silver Cross Health System (Health System) was incorporated during 1981 for charitable, educational, and
scientific purposes to support health and human services by providing management assistance, and in all
other relevant ways. The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Health System and the following affiliates, which it controls (collectively referred to as the Corporations):

. Silver Cross Hospital and Medical Centers (Hospital), a not-for-profit acute care hospital of which
the Health System is the sole member.

U Silver Cross Foundation (Foundation), a not-for-profit corporation of which the Health System is the
sole member, which is dedicated to the advancement of healthcare in Will, Grundy, South Cook, and

DuPage counties in Illinois.

. Health Service Systems, Inc. (HSSI), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Health System, which was
incorporated to provide administrative and management services to its affiliates and other

businesses.

. Midwest Community Real Estate Corporation (MCREC), a not-for-profit corporation of which the
Health System is the sole member, which was incorporated to establish and maintain healthcare
centers and other facilities for the benefit of the Health System and its affiliates.

. Silver Cross Managed Care Organization (SCMCO), a not-for-profit corporation of which the Health
System is the sole member, which was incorporated to provide alternative forms of healtbcare

delivery services.

. Silver Cross Medical Associates, Inc. {SCMA), a not-for-profit corporation that operates medical
practices in Joliet and surrounding areas. MCREC serves as the sole and exclusive manager and
administrator for all matters relating to the operations of SCMA, including but not limited to the
financial and management operations of SCMA.

On July 1, 2008, the Hospital received approval from the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board to
construct a replacement hospital facility on a parcel of land owned by the Hospital in New Lenox, IL. The
replacement hospital facility is anticipated to have 289 licensed and staffed beds and is currently expected
to be completed and ready for use in earty 2012. The cost of the replacement hospital facility is expected to
be approximately $400 million; funding for which will be from a debt financing anticipated in fiscal 2009;
existing cash and investments; proceeds from the sale of land held for sale; and casb generated from
operations. The consummation of a debt financing in fiscal 2009 cannot be assured given current economic
and credit market conditions, and accordingly, management’s plan of finance for the hospital replacement
facility may be subject to modification. Contractual commitments outstanding for the new hospital
replacement facility aggregated $11 million as of September 30, 2008.

Upon completion and relocation of Hospital operations to the replacement hospital facility, the Health
System may continue to own some facilities and provide medically related services at its current hospital
location. Such facilities and services could possibly include a primary care health center, urgent care
services, and medical offices. The Health System’s Board of Trustees and management, with input from

7 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

constituents of the local community, are currently evaluating all possible alternative uses for the existing
Hospital campus post-relocation.

The Corporations engage in transactions in the ordinary course of business with organizations with which
members of management and the boards of directors are affiliated. Such transactions are conducted at
arm’s length and fully disclosed to the respective members of management and boards of directors.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Significant accounting policies of the Corporations that conform to general practice withiii the healthcare
industry are as follows: -

. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. '

. The consolidated statements of operations include revenue and gains in excess {(deficient) of
expenses and losses. Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the
provision of healthcare services are reported as revenue and expenses. Transactious incidentai o the
provision of healthcare services are reported as gains and losses. Changes in unrestricted net assets,
which are excluded from revenue and gains in excess (deficient) of expenses and losses, consistent
with industry practice, include net changes in unrealized gains and losses on investments,
other-than-trading securities, contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using
contributions, which by donor restriction were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets),
changes in the effective portion of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, and
cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.

. Assets whose use is limited or restricted include: assets set aside by the Corporations” boards of
directors for future capital improvements, self-insurance funding, and for other purposes over which
the boards retain control and may at their discretion use for other purposes; assets designated by the
Foundation's board of directors for endowment development purposes; assets held by a trustee and
limited as to use in accordance with the requirements of bond indenture agreements; pledges
receivable; and temporarily and permanently restricted investments. Assets whose use is limited
required for current liabilities are reported as current assets.

. Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, intercst, and
dividends) is included in revenue and gains in excess {deficient) of expenses and losses unless the
income or loss is restricted by donors, in which case the investment income is recorded directly to
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets. Investment income of unrestricted investments is
reported as nonoperating gains. Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from

8 {Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

(Amounts in thousands)

revenue and gains in excess (deficient) of expenses and losses unless the investments are classified
by management as trading securities. Effective September 30, 2007, management redesignated all
investments to be trading securities. As a result of such redesignation, the net unrealized gain on the
investment portfolio of $10,128 at September 30, 2007 was reclassified from unrestricted net assets
to investment income in the accompanying 2007 consolidated statement of operations. Unrealized
gains and losses of permanently and temporarily restricted investments are recorded directly to
permanently and temporarily restricted net assets.

The Corporations consider demand deposits with banks, cash on hand, and all highly liquid debt
instruments (including repurchase agreements) purchased with terms of three months or less to be
cash and cash equivalents, excluding those instruments classified as assets whose use is limited or

restricted.

Except as otherwise noted, the camrying value of all financial instruments of the Corporations
approximates fair value.

Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost, or if donated, at fair value at date of donation.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of depreciable assets and is computed on the
straight-line method.

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the
asset. Assets to be disposed of are separately presented in the consolidated balance sheets and
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer
depreciated. Given the planned replacement hospital development project described in note 1, the
Corporations evaluated existing Hospital campus land, buildings, and equipment for impairment as
of September 30, 2008. The estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the
Hospital prior to the date of relocation to the replacement hospital facility, inclusive of a terminal
fair value estimate of existing Hospital campus land, buildings, and equipment, which will not be
utilized at the replacement hospital or in the ongoing delivery of medical services to the community,
were estimated to be in excess of the carrying value of land, buildings, and equipment at
September 30, 2008, which will not be utilized by the Hospital post-relocation. Accordingly, no
impairment charge was recognized by the Hospital in 2008 related to the planned replacement
hospital project. However, the planned replacement hospital project will result in the Hospital
increasing its depreciation charges on land, buildings, and equipment by approximately $9.9 million
on an annualized basis for fiscal 2009 and subsequent periods through date of relocation. Although
the ultimate usc and redeployment of existing campus land, buildings, and equipment post-relocation
has not been determined, management anticipates that any remaining net book value of such land,
buildings, and equipment at the date of hospital relocation will be recognized as a contribution

9 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

expense in the event that such land, buildings, and equipment are transferred to an unrelated
not-for-profit or governmental entity for the betterment and use of the local community.

All legal obligations, including those under the doctrine of promissory estoppel, associated with the
retirement of tangible long-lived assets are recognized when incurred using management’s best
estimate of fair value. Management uses a discount rate of 3%, which approximates its credit
adjusted risk-free rate, to estimate fair value of its asset retirement obligations at the measurement

date.

Unconditional promises to give cash or other assets are reported at fair value at the date the promise
is received. All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by donors. Contributions are reported as direct additions to permanently or temporarily
restricted net asscts if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets
and reported as net assets released from restriction. Temporarily restricted net assets used for
operating purposes are included with other operating revenue to the extent expended duning the
period. Gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as
restricted contributions. Expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired
long-lived assets are placed in service. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met
within the same year as received are reported directly within the consolidated statements of

operations.

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time
period or purpose. Temporarily restricted net assets include the Hospital’s interest in a charitable
remainder trust. Investment income of the charitable remainder trust is distributable within specified
limits to an unrelated party. All other temporarily restricted net assets are restricted primarily for
land, building, and equipment acquisitions at both September 30, 2008 and 2007.

Permanently restricted net assets represent donor-restricted contributions, the principal amount of
which may not be expended. Permanently restricted net assets include the Foundation’s interest in a
charitable remainder trust. Investment income of the charitable remainder trust is distributable within
specified limits to an unrelated party. Investment income earned on permanently restricted net assets,
to the extent it is restricted by a donor for a specific purpose, is recorded as a direct addition to
temporarily restricted net assets. All other investment income on permanently restricted net assets is
unrestricted and is recorded as nonoperating gains.

Provisions for estimated self-insured professional, general liability, workers’ compensation, and
employee healthcare risks include estimates of the ultimate cost of both reported losses and losses
incurred but not reported as of the respective consotidated balance sheet dates. :

The Corporations account for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with FASB Statement
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, which requires
that all derivative instruments be recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at their respective fair

values.

10 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

For all hedging relationships, the Corporations formally document the hedging relationship and its
risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item,
the nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the
hedged risk will be assessed, and a description of the method of measuring ineffectiveness. This
process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as cash-flow hedges to specific assets and
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Derivatives not linked to specific assets and liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets are carried at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets and
changes in fair value are recognized as a component of interest expense in the consolidated
statements of operations.

The Corporations also formally assess, both at the hedge’s inception and on a quarterly basis,
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of the hedged items. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly
effective and that is designated and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are recorded as other changes in
unrestricted net assets to the extent that the derivative is effective as a hedge, until carnings are
affected by the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. The ineffective portion of the
change in fair value of a derivative instrument that qualifies as a cash-flow hedge is reported as a
component of interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Corporations discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of the hedged item, the
derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or management determines that designation of
the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate. In situations in which hedge
accounting is discontinued, the Corporations will continue to carry the derivative at its fair value in
the consolidated balance sheets and recognize any subsequent changes in its fair value as an expense
component in the consolidated statements of operations.

Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party
payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Those adjustments are accrued on an estimated
basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements

are determined.

Deferred finance charges and unamortized bond discounts and premiums are amortized using the
straight-line method over the periods the related obligations are outstanding.

The Health System, the Hospital, MCREC, the Foundation, and SCMA are not-for-profit
corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code) and are exempt
from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. A provision for
income taxes has not been recorded for HSSI as there are nct operating losses of approximately
$17,421 available for carryforward, which expire at various future dates through 2023. SCMCO is a
not-for-profit corporation, which is subject to federal and state income taxes. A provision for income
taxes has not been recorded for SCMCO as there are net operating losses of approximatcly $1,427
available for carryforward, which expire at various future dates through 2012. Deferred tax assets

11 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

arising primarily from net operating loss carryforwards have been offset in their entirety by a
valuation allowance at both September 30, 2008 and 2007. In assessing the realizability of deferred
tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary

differences become deductible.

. On October 1, 2007, the Corporations adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting Sfor
Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). This
interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions recognized in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This interpretation also
provides guidance on when the tax positions are recognized in an entity’s financial statements and
how the values of these positions are determined. The adoption of FIN 48 had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

. The Corporations incur expenses for the provision of healthcare services and related general and
administrative activities.

. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2008 consolidated financial
statement presentation.

Other significant accounting policies are set forth in the consolidated financial statements and in the
following notes.

Third-Party Reimbursement Programs

The Hospital, HSSI, SCMCO, and SCMA (collectively referred to as the Providers) have agreements with
third-party payors that provide for reimbursenient at amounts different from their established rates.
Estimated contractual adjustments arising under third-party reimbursement programs principally represent
the differences between the Providers’ billings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare, Blue
Cross, and certain other contracted third-party payors; the difference between the Providers® billings at list
price and the allocated cost of services provided to Medicaid patients; and any differences between
estimated third-party reimbursement settlements for prior years and subsequent final settlements. A
summary of the reimbursement methodologies with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare

The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care, outpatient, rehabilitative, and home health services
rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates. These rates vary
according to patient classification systems that are based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
The prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment. The Hospital’s
classification of patients under the prospective payment systems and the appropriateness of patient
admissions are subject to validation reviews.

For certain services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries, the Providers’ reimbursement is based upon
cost or other reimbursement methodologies. The Providers are reimbursed at a tentative rate with

12 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the
Medicarc fiscal intermediary. Medicare reimbursement reports through September 30, 2006 have
been audited and final settled by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

Medicaid

The Hospital is paid for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries
under prospectively determined rates-per-discharge. These rates vary according to a patient
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Medicaid outpatient
services are reimbursed based on fee schedules. Medicaid reimbursement methodologies may be
subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment levels and rates, based on
the amount of funding available to the State of Illinois Medicaid program, and any such changes
could have a significant effect on the Hospital’s revenues.

During 2004, the State of Illinois (the State) enacted an assessment program to assist in the financing
of its Medicaid program through June 30, 2005. The program was renewed in December 2006 for the
State fiscal years ended June 30, 2006, 2007, and 2008. Pursuant to this program, hospitals within
the State are required to remit payment to the State of Illinois Medicaid program under an
assessment formula approved by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS). The
assessment program also provides hospitals within the State with additional Medicaid reimbursement
based on funding formulas also approved by CMS. For the period July 1, 2005 through
September 30, 2007, the Hospital included its assessment of $13,046 and its related additional
Medicaid reimbursement of $20,954 within net patient service revenue in the accompanying 2007
consolidated statement of operations. Included within 2008 net patient service revenue is the
Hospital’s assessment of $6,523 and its additional Medicaid reimbursement of $10,477. The State
received CMS approval for extension of a new five-year Medicaid assessment program on
December 4, 2008 for the State’s fiscal years ending June 30, 2009 through June 30, 2013. The
Hospital has not currently received notice of its net incremental Medicaid rcimbursement under the
new assessment program. Net incremental Medicaid revenue under the new assessment program for
the Hospital’s three-months ended September 30, 2008 will be recognized in fiscal year 2009, the
year of enactment of the new assessment program.

Blue Cross

The Hospital also participates as a provider of healthcare services under a reimbursement agreement
with Blue Cross. The provisions of this agreement stipulate that services will be reimbursed at a
tentative reimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these services is determined after the
submission of an annual cost report by the Hospital and a review by Blue Cross. The Blue Cross
reimbursement reports for September 30, 2007 and prior years have been reviewed by Blue Cross.

Other

The Providers have also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for
payment under thesc agreements is negotiated by the Providers and includes prospectively

13 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

determined rates-per-discharge, discounts from established charges, capitation, and ﬁrospectively
determined per diem rates.

SCMCO is involved in various risk-based contracts with managed care organizations. Under these
arrangements, SCMCO receives capitation payments based on the demographic characteristics of
covered members in exchange for providing all primary care physician services, as well as certain
outpatient diagnostic and specialist physician services. Additionally, SCMCO is eligible for
incentive payments based on favorable utilization experience. Capitation revenue related to
risk-based contracts totaled approximately $18,091 and $16,536 for 2008 and 2007, respectively, and
is included with other revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Pursuant
to risk-based contracts, SCMCO estimates its liability for covered medical claims, including claims
incurred but not reported as of the consolidated balance sheet dates, based upon historical costs
incurred and payment processing experience. This liability approximated $1,672 and $1,912 at
September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and is included with accounts payable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Net patient service revenue for the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 include approximately
$2,232 and $1,968, respectively, of favorable retrospectively determined prior year settlements with

third-party payors.

A summary of the Providers’ utilization percentages based upon gross patient service revenue
follows:

2008 2007

Medicare 42.0% 42.7%
Medicaid 12.8 12.9
Managed care 36.7 358
Other 8.5 8.6

100.0% 100.0%

14 (Continued)
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007

{Amounts in thousands)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Providers grant credit without collateral to their patients, most of whom are local residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors as
of September 30, 2008 and 2007 follows:

2008 2007

Medicare 28.5% 30.8%
Medicaid 18.9 16.8
Blue Cross R.8 7.0
Managed care 19.9 19.2
Patients 19.3 21.5
Other 4.6 4.7

100.0% 100.0%
Charity Care

The Hospital provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of
amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue. In addition, reimbursement
for services provided to Medicaid program beneficiaries is substantially less than the cost to the Hospital of
providing these services.

The Hospital maintains records of the amount of charges forgone and related cost for services and supplies
furnished under its charity care policy, as well as the estimated differences between the cost of services
provided to Medicaid patients and the reimbursement under that program. The following information
measures the level of charity care provided and unreimbursed cost under the Medicaid program during
2008 and 2007:

2008 2007

Charity care costs for non-Medicaid patients $ 6,290 2,743
Excess of cost over reimbursement for services provided to

Medicaid patients (1) 8,229 4,202
(1) Net impact of Medicaid assessment program has been

allocated to each year based upon the State’s fiscal year
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SILVER CROSS HEALTH SYSTEM
AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

Investments

The Corporations report investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities at fair value. Fair value is determined primarily on the basis of quoted
market prices. A summary of the composition of the Corporations’ investment portfolio at September 30,

2008 and 2007 follows:
2008 2007

Cash and cash equivalents § 4,467 4,498
Certificates of deposit/repurchase agreements 14,459 21,780
Money market funds 5,782 5,543
Common stock 4,968 5,821
Mutual funds 47,126 57,358
U.S. Treasury sccurities 15,179 17,528
Corporate bonds and notes 41,626 37,640
$ 133,607 150,168

Investments are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at September 30 as follows:

2008 2007
Short-term investments £ 6,841 7,796
Assets whose use is limitcd or restricted:

Required for current liabilities 4 88
By board for capita! improvements, self-insurance,

and other 106,988 112,934

Under bond indenture agreements — held by trustee : 12,130 21,049

Donor-restricted investments 7,594 8,301

$ 133,607 150,168

The composition of investment return on the Corporations’ investment portfolio for 2008 and 2007 is as

follows:
2008 2007
Interest and dividend income, net of fees and expenses 3 7,845 4,034
Net realized gains (losses) on sale of investments (202) 161
Net change in unrealized gains and losses during
the holding period (16,325) 10,504
5 { 8,682) 14,699
16 (Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
(Amounts in thousands)

Investment return is included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended

September 30, 2008 and 2007 as follows:

2008 2007
Nonoperating gains — investment income (loss), net $ (7,804) 24,451
Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-
trading securities — (174)
Designation of investments as trading — (10,128)
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on temporarily
restricted investments (182) 151
Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on permanently
restricted investments (696) 399
$ (8,682) 14,699

The Corporations invest in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to varjous risks
such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
certain investment securities, it is at least rcasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in

the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

(73 Land, Buildings, and Equipment
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment at September 30, 2008 and 2007 follows:
2008 2007
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost depreciation Cost depreciation
Land $ 31,370 — 31,009 —
Land improvements 5,336 3,556 5,054 3,502
Buildings, building improvements,
and fixed equipment 179,673 89,238 169,247 82,727
Major movable equipment 97,847 62,434 87,264 55,488
Construction in progress 14,187 — 18,489 —

$ 328,413 155,228 311,063 141,717

The Corporations are currently engaged in various construction and renovation projects, principally the
construction of a new hospital replacement facility as discussed in note 1. Qutstanding commitments
related to these projects approxirate $11,011 at September 30, 2008. Interest cost is capitalized as a
component cost of significant capital projects, net of any interest income eamned on unexpended
project-specific borrowed funds. During the years ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Corporations

17 . {Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
{Amounts in thousands)

did not capitalize any interest cost. The Corporations reclassified $8,424 of land held for sale during 2008
into land, buildings, and equipment resulting from the use of land previously held for sale as the site for
construction of the new hospital replacement facility as discussed in note 1. During 2008, the Corporations
also reclassified $7,908 of land from land, buildings, and equipment into land held for sale as such land
was not used for the site of the new hospital replacement facility as originally anticipated.

Long-Term Debt
A summary of long-term debt at September 30, 2008 and 2007 follows:
2008 2007

lllinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2008A, at fixed effective interest rates of 5.00% to

to 5.82%, depending upon date of maturity through

August 15, 2030 5 86,660 —_
[llinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2005A,

at fixed effective interest rates from 4.00% to 5.25%,

depending upon date of maturity through August 15, 2020 21,125 21,395
lllinois Finance Authority Auction Rate Revenue Bonds,

Series 2005B, effective interest rates of 4.45% and 3.61%

in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Refunded in June 2008 — 69,350
Iliinois Finance Authority Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds,

Series 2005C, at fixed effective interest rates of 2.85% to

5.58%, depending on date of maturity through August 15,

2025. Prior to the fixed rate conversion date of August 14,

2008, the Series 2005C bonds were operating as periodic

auction rate revenue bonds with effectivc interest rates

of 5.02% and 3.61% in 2008 and 2007, respectively 20,525 21,450
Illinois Finance Authority Auction Rate Revenue Bonds,

Series 2005D, effective interest rates of 4.07% and 3.60%

in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Refunded in 2008 — 10,625
INinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 1999, at fixed effective interest rates of 5.43%

to 5.65%, depending on date of maturity through 2019 7,480 7,990
INinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 1996,

at fixed effective interest rates 5.88% to 6.22%,

depending on date of maturity through 2009 280 1,335
Total long-tcrm debt 136,070 132,145
Less:
Current installments 3,405 2,760
Unamortized net bond discounts and premiums (236) (937)
Long-term debt, excluding current installments,
and unamortized bond discounts and premiums  § 132,901 130,322
18 {Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
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The Hospital and the Health System (collectively known as the Obligated Group) entered into an Amended
and Restated Master Trust Indenture (Master Trust Indenture) dated as of June 1, 1996, as subsequently
supplemented and amended. The purpose of the Master Trust Indenture is to provide a mechanism for the
efficient and economical issuance of notes by individual members of the Obligated Group using the
collective borrowing capacity and credit rating of the Obligated Group. The Master Trust Indenture
requires members of the Obligated Group to make principal and interest payments on notes issued for their
benefit as well as other Obligated Group members, if the other members are unable to make such
payments. The Master Trust Indenture requires the Obligated Group comply with financial and other
covenant requirements, The Obligated Group pledged a security interest in their gross revenues as
collateral on borrowings under the Master Trust Indenture. The Obligated Group has also executed and
delivered a mortgage on certain land, buildings, and equipment in favor of the Master Trustee. The
mortgage will only be recorded and filed by the Master Trustee upon the occurrence of certain specified
events in the Master Trust Indenture, as supplemented and amended.

On December 8, 2005, the Illinois Finance Authority issued fixed rate revenue bonds, Series 2005A, and
auction rate revenue bonds, Series 20058, Series 2005C, and Series 2005D (collectively referred to as the
Series 2005 bonds) in the aggregate amount of $124,640 on behalf of the Hospital. A portion of the
proceeds from the Series 2005 bond issuance was used to advance refund their outstanding revenue bonds
Series 2002A and Series 2002B, and to advance refund portions of the revenue refunding bonds
Series 1999 and the revenue bonds Series 1996. The remaining proceeds were used for the purposes of
acquiring real property, constructing various healthcare facilities, providing debt service reserve funds, and
paying issuance costs. On August 14, 2008, the Hospital converted the Series 2005C auction rate revenue
bonds to fixed rate revenue bonds. Principal on the Series 2005A and 2005C bonds is payable on
August 15™ annually. Interest on the Series 2005A and Series 2005C bonds is payable semiannually.

On June 18, 2008, the Illinois Finance Authority issued fixed rate revenue refunding bonds, Series 2008A
(referred to as the Series 2008 bonds) in the aggregate amount of $86,660 on behalf of the Hospital. A
portion of the proceeds from the Series 2008 bond issuance was used to advance refund the Series 2005B
and Series 2005D auction rate revenue bonds (Prior Bonds). The remaining proceeds were used for the
purposes of establishing a debt service reserve fund and to pay certain expenses incurred in connection
with the issuance of the Series 2008 bonds and refunding of the Prior Bonds. The Hospital recognized a
loss on early extinguishment of debt on the refunding of the Prior Bonds, and fixed rate conversion of the
Series 2005C bonds, in the aggregate amount of $3,077 in 2008, which is reported as a nonoperating loss
in the accompanying 2008 consolidated statement of operations. Principal on the Series 2008A bonds is
due annually, beginning August 15, 2009 through 2030. Interest on the Series 2008 bonds is payable
semiannually.

The Series 2008 and 2005 bonds were issued pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture as well as individual
Bond Trust Indentures. Under the terms of the related Bond Trust Indentures, the Hospital is required to
maintain certain reserve funds and make additional deposits with a trustec for the payment of principal and
interest on the Series 2008 and 2005 bonds. Payment of principal and interest when due on the Series 2005
bonds is guaranteed under a municipal bond insurance policy.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2008 and 2007
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On April 22, 1999, the Illinois Finance Authority issued revenue refunding bonds, Series 1999, in the
amount of $29,105 on behalf of the Hospital. The Series 1999 bonds were issued pursuant to the Master
Trust Indenture. Principal payments are due annually on August 15, and interest is payable semiannually.
Under the terms of the related Bond Trust Indenture, the Hospital is required to maintain certain reserve
funds and make additional deposits with a trustee for the payment of principal and interest on the
Series 1999 bonds.

On June 25, 1996, the 1llinois Finance Authority issued revenue bonds, Series 1996, in the amount of
$29,875 on behalf of the Hospital. The Series 1996 bonds were issued pursuant to the Master Trust
Indenture. Principal payments are due annually on August 15, and interest is payable semiannually. Under
the terms of the related Bond Trust Indenture, the Hospital is required to maintain certain reserve funds and
make additional deposits with a trustee for the payment of principal and interest on the Series 1996 bonds.
Payment of principal and interest on the Series 1996 bonds when due is guaranteed under a municipal bond
insurance policy.

: At September 30, 2008 and 2007, the fair value of total long-term debt was approximately $131,713 and
' $133,887, respectively. Fair value was estimated using quoted market prices based upon the Obligated

Group’s current borrowing rates for similar types of long-term debt securities.
Scheduled annual principal payments on long-term debt for the ensuing five years are as follows:

Year:
2009 L) 3,405

2010 3,585
2011 3,770

2012 3,960
2013 4,165

(9) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Hospital has interest rate related derivative instruments to manage its exposure on debt instruments.
By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates, the Hospital
exposes itself to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under
the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the
counterparty owes the Hospital, which creates credit risk for the Hospital. When the fair value of a
derivative contract is negative, the Hospital owes the counterparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit
risk. The Hospital attempts to minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into
transactions with high-quality counterparties. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial
instrument that results from a change in interest rates. The market risk associated with interest rate changes
is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market risk that
may be undertaken. Hospital management also mitigates risk through periodic reviews of their derivative
positions in the context of their total blended cost of capital.

20 (Continued)
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2002 Interest Rate Swap Agreement

During 2002, the Hospital entered into an interest rate swap agreement to convert portions of its fixed rate
debt portfolio from a fixed to variable rate. Under this agreement, the Hospital receives a variable rate of
return, based upon 68.75% of the three-month USD-LIBOR-BBA rate on a notional amount of $15,000,
and is obligated to pay the financial institution a variable rate of return, based upon the weekly SIFMA
Municipal Swap Index rate, on the same notional amount. The 2002 interest rate swap agreement has a
marurity date of February 6, 2014.

The 2002 interest rate swap does not meet the criteria to qualify for hedge accounting; accordingly, the fair
value of the interest rate swap derivative instrument is recognized within the consolidated balance sheets
with changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument reported within income from operations.
Payments equal to the differential between the amounts due to and due from the financial institution are
computed and exchanged quarterly. The differential to be paid or received under the interest rate swap
agreement is recognized within interest expense on a current basis. The net interest rate differential (paid)
received by the Hospital as a result of the 2002 interest rate swap agreement during 2008 and 2007 of
approximately $(127) and $47, respectively, has been included as an (addition) reduction to interest
expense in the accomnpanying consolidated statements of operations. Fair value of the interest rate swap
agreement was a {liability) asset of $(180) and $84 at September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and is
included with accrued expenses and other receivabies in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets,
respectively. The change in fair value of the interest rate swap agreement of $(264) in 2008 and $28 in
2007 has been recorded as an (addition) reduction to interest expense. Fair value of the interest rate swap
agreement was estimated using a discounted present value methodology and current projected interest
rates.

2005 Interest Rate Swap Agreement

The Hospital entered into an interest rate swap agreement in November 2005 to manage fluctuations in
cash flows resulting from interest rate risk on its auction rate Series 2005B debt, with an original notional
amount of $69,350. The notional amounts and maturity dates of the 2005 interest rate swap agreement
comrelate with the outstanding principal schedule on the underlying Series 2005B debt. The swap
agreement changed the variable-rate cash flow exposure on the Series 2005B debt to fixed cash flows.
Under the terms of the interest rate swap agreement, the Hospital received, on a weekly basis, payments at
62% of one-month LIBOR plus 15 basis points. In exchange for this indexed payment received, the
Hospital paid, on a weekly basis, an annualized fixed rate of 3.437%. With the issuance of the Series 2005
debt, the 2005 interest rate swap agreement was designated as a cash flow hedge instrument, and
accordingly, changes in fair value of the 2005 interest rate swap agreement were recognized directly to
unrestricted net assets for the effective portion of the hedge.

The Hospital terminated the 2005 interest rate swap agreement in conjunction with the extinguishment of
the Series 2005B debt in June, 2008. The termination of the interest rate swap agreement required the
Hospital make a settlement payment to the counterparty equal to the fair value of the interest rate swap at
the termination date in amount of $1,390. The termination payment of $1,390 was recognized within 2008
interest expense through a reclassification from unrestricted net assets. The excess of the 2008 change in
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fair value of the 2005 interest rate swap agreement of $1,909 over amounts reclassified into interest
expense has been reported as a reduction of 2008 unrestricted net assets.

The fair value of the 2005 interest rate swap agreement was an asset of $519 at September 30, 2007, which
is included as a component of other long-term liabilities in the accompanying 2007 consolidated balance
sheet. The change in fair value of the 2005 interest rate swap agreement of $694 in 2007 was recorded as a
direct addition to unrestricted net assets. The net interest rate differential received by the Hospital as a
result of the Series 2005 interest rate swap agreement during 2008 and 2007 of approximatcly $92 and $62,
respectively, has been recorded as a reduction of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. '

2005B Basis Swap Agreements

On June 2, 2006, the Hospital entered into interest rate swap agreements on the Series 2005B debt (Basis
Swaps) with two commercial banks. The Basis Swaps have effective dates of February 15, 2007. The Basis
Swaps each have a notional amount of $34,675 whereby the Hospital will receive, on a monthly basis,
60.2854% of USD-ISDA Swap Rate, and will make monthly payments at 62.5% of one-month LIBOR
plus 15 basis points. During 2008, the Basis Swap agreements were amended to suspend monthly cash
payments until February 15, 2014. The Basis Swaps have notional amounts and maturity dates that
correlate with the outstanding principal schedule on the Series 2005B debt, which was refunded in 2008.
The 2005B Basis Swaps have remained in force subsequent to the refunding of the Series 2005B debt. Fair
value of the Basis Swaps were liabilities of $424 and $460 at September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively,
and are included with other long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The net
interest rate differential received (paid) by the Hospital as a result of the 2005B Basis Swap agreements
during 2008 and 2007 of approximately $255 and $(1 14), respectively, has been recorded as a reduction
(addition) to interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The change in
fair value of the 2005B Basis Swaps of $36 in 2008 and $(376) in 2007 has been recorded as a reduction
(addition) to interest expense as the Basis Swaps do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Pension Plans

The Health System, HSSI, and the Hospital sponsor various voluntary, defined contribution, and money
purchase pension plans for all qualified full-time employees. Benefits for individual employees are the
amounts that can be provided by the sums contributed and accumulated for each individual employee. The
Health System, HSSI, and the Hospital recognized expense under the terms of the plans in the amount of
$3,149 and $2,824 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Health System, HSSI, and the Hospital fund the
plans on a current basis.

The Health System also sponsors several supplemental retirement plans. Eligibility for these plans is
limited to specified employees. The supplemental plans are defined benefit plans and are not qualified
plans under Section 401 of the Code. The Health System has recognized expense under the terms of these
supplemental retirement plans in the amount of $1,614 and $557 for 2008 and 2007, respectively. Amounts
owed to specified employees under the supplemental retirement plans are included with accrued salaries
and wages.
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(11) Self-Insured Risks

Professional and General Liability

The Corporations maintain a self-insurance program for professional and general liability coverage. The
self-insurance program includes varying levels of self-insured retention and excess malpractice insurance
coverage purchased from commercial insurance carriers. In connection with the self-insurance program,
the Corporations have engaged the services of a professional actuarial consultant to assist in the estimation
of self-insurance provisions and claim liability reserves.

Provisions for estimated self-insured professional and general liability claims of $11,229 in 2008 and
$6,529 in 2007 are included with general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. It is the opinion of management that the estimated professional and general
liabilities accrued at September 30, 2008 and 2007 are adequate to provide for the ultimate cost of potential
losses resulting from pending or threatened litigation; however, such estimates may be more or less than
the amounts ultimately paid when claims are resolved. The Corporations have also designated attorneys to
handle legal matters relating to malpractice and general liability claims. No portion of the accrual for
estimated self-insured professional and general liability claims has been reported as a current liability. The
liability for estimated self-insured professional and general liability claims has been discounted at 4% and
5% as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Workers’ Compensation

The Health System, HSSI, and the Hospital maintain a self-insurance program for workers’ compensation
coverage. This program limits the self-insured retention to $500 per occurrence. Coverage from
commercial insurance carriers is maintained for claims in excess of the self-insured retention. Provisions
for workers’ compensation claims amounted to $1,071 and $553 for 2008 and 2007, respectively, and are
included with payroll taxes and fringe benefits expense. Management believes the estimated self-insured
workers’ compensation claims liability at September 30, 2008 and 2007 is adequate to cover the ultimate
liability; however, such estimates may be more or less than the amounts ultimately paid when claims are
resolved.

Healthcare

The Health System, HSSI, and the Hospital also have a program of self-insurance for employee healthcare
coverage. Stop-loss reinsurance coverage is maintained for claims in excess of stop-loss limits. Provisions
for self-insured employee healthcare claims amounted to $11,338 and $10,632 for 2008 and 2007,
respectively, and are included with payroll taxes and fringe benefits expense. It is the opinion of
management that the estimated healthcare costs accrued at September 30, 2008 and 2007 are adequate to
provide for the ultimate liability; however, final payouts as claims are paid may vary significantly from
estimated claim liabilities.
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(12) Imvestment in Joint Ventures

Orland Park Surgical Center, L.L.C.

On January 15, 2001, the Hospital became a founding member of Orland Park Surgical Center, L.L.C. {the
Center) whose purpose is to develop and operate an ambulatory surgery center in Orland Park, Illinois. The
Hospital provided the Center with an initial $660 equity contribution, which satisfied the capital
contribution provisions of the operating agreement. Pursuant to the operating agreement, profits and losses
are allocated to the members in accordance with the proportion of their membership units to the aggregate
membership units of the Center, of which the Hospital holds a 33% interest. Distributions will be made to
members in accordance with the proportion of their membership units to the aggregate membership units
of the Center. Distributions are payable by the Center at the discretion of the Center’s board of managers to
the extent of the availability of net cash flows. The Center became operational during 2002.

The Hospital accounts for its investment in the Center on the equity method of accounting. The Hospital
has included its proportional share of the Center’s net income of $125 and $440 in 2008 and 2007,
respectively, within other operating revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
The Hospital received cash distributions from the Center of $212 and $372 in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
As of and for the years ended September 30,